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ASBESTOS IN SCHOOLS

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 11,', 1987

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE,

SUBCOMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION, TOURISM,
AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS,

Washington, DC.
The subcommittee met, pursuart to notice, at 10:06 a.m. in room

2322, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Thomas A. Luken
(chairman) presiding.

Mr. LUKEN. This hearing of the Subcommittee on Transporta-
tion, Tourism and Hazardous Materials will now be called to order.
The hearing is on the hazards of delaying implementation of EPA's
Asbestos in Schools Program. I'd like to welcome Mr. Moore of the
EFA and all of you who have joined us today to examine these
problems that plague the Environmental Protection Agency's As-
bestos in Schools Program. I would like to acknowledge the fine
work of Congressman Florio and thank him for bringing this
matter to our attention at this particular time, and for his help
and the help of the Minority in putting this hearing together.

For some reason, the administration believes that Federal finan-
cial aid to help schools clean up asbestos should be eliminated. The
administration has proposed no funds for fiscal year 1988, aryl has
requested rescission of $47.5 million of the $50 million appropriated
for fiscal year 1987. The administration's proposal is outrageous,
and that is a moderate statement under the circumstances. Evi-
dently, the administration believes that spending millions to pay
U.S. farmers not to grow crops, for example, is okay but protecting
children from asbestos is out of the question.

According to budget documents, the EPA believes that previous
Federal funding has already greatly reduced the asbestos problem.
I will be very interested in pursuing that statement and seeing
what basis there is for saying that the asbestos problem has been
greatly reduced. Fifteen million school kids and 1.5 million school
workers iAre exposed to asbestos every day. Thousands of schools
have applied for Federal funds in the past few years. In 1986, over
1,700 schools applied for loans or grants. The largest number of
school district applicants came from my State, Ohio. Only 295
school districts nationwide received some help, and the estimated
cost of cleanup action for those schools is almost $200 million.

In addition, the EPA acknowledges that since passage of legisla-
tion in 1986 requiring schools to address the asbestos problem, even
more schools will need help.

(1)
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Asbestos is a known carcinogen. When inhaled, its fibers can
cause crippling disease and death. Asbestos is particularly hazard-
ous to children, and I think the EPA will testify to that effect. Chil-
dren breathe at a faster rate than adults. We face a national trage-
dy from the exposure of children to asbestos.

But despite the overwhelming evidence of the great need on the
part of schools and the peril to schoolchildren, the administ-ation
pretends the problem doesn't exist. Last year, Congress passed the
Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act because we were con-
vinced that States and local governments could not adequately ad-
dress the problem. Less than a year after the "resident signed that
legislation, the administration claims it is time to turn this prob-
lem over to State and local government. We will pursue that
matter today.

Yesterday I joined with Congressman Florio to announce the in-
troduction of a joint House/Senate resolution to require the EPA to
make funds available for schools in time for cleanup this summer.
The problem the resolution addresses stems from the request for
the rescission and what has flowed from that request, and the slow-
ing of the EPA effort which was already at a snail's pace, and
therefore, what amounts to sabotage of the program through the
administrative impediments that have been thrown up.

This resolution I'm sure Congressman Florio will discuss further,
but the intent of that resolution and intent of this hearing is to
bring about compliance with the congressional will in a bill that
was signed by the President to give a boost to the efforts of the
states and to the local school districts to remove this peril to the
health of our nation's children.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Luken follows:]

STATEMENT OF HON. THOMAS A. LUKEN

I would like to welcome Mr. Moore and all of you wno have joined us today to
examine the problems that plague the Environmental Protection Agency's Asbestos
in Schools program. I would like to thank Congressman Florio for bringing this
issue before the Subcommittee and for his staff's help in putting this hearing togeth
er.

For some reason, the Administration believes that federal financial aid to help
schools clean up asbestos should be eliminated. The Administration has proposed no
funds for fiscal year 1988 and has requested rescission of $47.5 million of the $50
million appropriated for FY 1987. The Administration's proposal is outrageous. Evi-
dently, the Administration believes that spending millions '0, pay U.S. farmers not
to grow cops is more imortant than protecting children from asbestos.

According to Budget documents, the EPA believes that "previous federal funding
has already greatly reduced the [asbestos] problem." 15 million school kids and 1.5
million school workers exposed to asbestos everyday disagree. So do I. Thousands of
schools have applied for federal funds over the past few years. In 1986, over 1,700
schools applied for loans or grants. The iargest number of school district applicants,
82, came from my state, Ohio. Only 295 school districts nationwide received some
help and the estimated cost of clean-up actions for those schools alone is almost
$200 million. In addition, the EPA acknowledges that since passage of legislation in
1986 requiring schools to address the asbestos probiPan, even more schools will need
help. There is no justification for eliminating federal funds to help schools protect
children from asbestos.

Asbestos is a known carcinogen. When inhaled, its fibers can cause crippling dis-
ease and death resulting in enormous hardship for victims and their families. Asbes-
tos is particularly hazardous to children who breathe at a rate 5 times greater than
adults. We face a national tragedy from the constant exposure of our children to
this dangerous material.

6



3

Despite the overwhelming evidence of great need on the part of schools and of the
peril to school children, the Administration pretends the problem does not exist.
Last year, Congress passed the Asbestos Hazard Emeigency Response Act because
we were convinced that states and local governments could not adequately address
the problem. Less than a year after the President signed that legislation into la 7,
the Administration claims that it is time to turn this problem over to state alid
local government. I am eager to hear the EPA's explanation for this sudden turna-
round.

Yesterday. I joined with Congressman Florio to announce the introduction of a
joint House:Senate resolution to require the EPA to make funds available for
schools to use for asbestos clean-up this summer. The problem the resolution ad-
dresses stems from the request for the rescission of the 1987 appropriation. It is my
understanding that EPA has put the Asbestos in Schools program on hold pending
Congressional review of this request.

It is my view that an unsupportable request to rescind funds does not authorize
the EPA to stop a program Congress enacted in 1984 and for which it provided $50
million in funds for use in 1987.

The resolution would require EPA to make funds available for use in schools this
summer. In the past two years, EPA has not made awards under the Asbestos in
Schools pro.,,ram until June in 1985 and July in 1986. That is simply much too late
for the schools to apply these funds to remedial work planned for the summer. The
result is that needy schools are forced to expose school children to asbestos for an
additional year. Clean-up can only take place during the summer when school build-
ings are unoccupied.

Obviously aware that its actions will prevent schools who apply for fun.'53 this
year from receiving awards in time for use this summer, EPA has proposed that
instead of providing 1987 funds to needy schools who apply this year, it will award
$30-$35 million to last year's applicants who did not receive funds. I question
whether EPA's decision will result in awards being made to the schools with the
greatest need. Also, I would like to know if EPA has done all the work necessary in
time to determine if these 1986 applicants still need funds.

Under EPA's plan $10 to $15 million ia funds already appropriated fo,. this year
will be awarded to 1987 applicants but not until June. This is unacceptable to me
and to the parents of the children exposed to these risks.

I look forward to hearing EPA's explanation and the views of the school repre-
sentatives and service employee's union.

Mr LUKEN. We will proceed with the hearing, therefore, after
opening statements to examine those questions. I now call on the
ranking minority member, Mr. Whittaker, for any opening state-
ment that you may have.

Mr. WinTrAKEh. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. And be-
lieve me, it is a pleasure to be here today on the first official busi-
ness day of the new Subcommittee on Transportation, Tourism,
and Hazardous Materials. I welcome our new Chairman, Mr.
Luken, and I look forward to a fruitful and cooperative relation-
ship with him over the next 2 years.

And I might add that Ls Chairman of our subcommittee, it is
going to be our Chairman's job, Mr. Luken's job, to engineer a wide
range of legislative initiatives on rail and environmental issues
through this 100th Congress. So it seems only fitting to present
him with an engineer's cap as a token of my esteem and best
wishes for a productive 2 years at the throttle of our subcommittee.

Mr. LUKEN. It is not going to be indicative of anything that I
have to expand the cap right off.

I will take it off immediately so that I won't be intimidating
anyone out there.

Mr. WHITTAKER. In the spirit of fair play I will put one on as
well.

Mr. LUKEN. Just for the photo.
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Mr. Mom mom To continue, Mr. Chairman, it is noteworthy
that this subcommittee's first hearing will focus on the serious en-
vironmental issue of asbestos in schools. You'll find that the mem-
bers of this subcommittee are both very familiar and very con-
cerned with this potential health hazard.

Last year, the Energy and Commerce Committee passed legisla-
tion that established minimum health standards for the protection
of children from asbestos exposure in our schools. This legislation
received strong support from both sides of the aisle. I'm happy to
say that the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act of 1986 was
enacted into law in October 1986.

The subject of today's hearing is a much more focused issue con-
cerning EPA's schedule for the distribution of cleanup funds under
the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act. Unfortunately to this
member, it appears that the asbestos-in-schools program has
become a pawn in the budget war between the administration and
the Congress.

Last year, the 99th Congress appropriated $50 million in funds
for EPA to distribute to schools under the Asbestos School Hazard
Abatement Act. This year, however, the administration has pro-
posed to rescind these funds. Unfortunately, the only real outcome
of this budget war will be EPA's delay in distributing badly needed
funds to schools conducting cleanup work. It is clear that Congress
will not act to affirm this proposed rescission, and thus, we have
what could be considered the worst possible outcorue; the appropri-
ated funds simply will not be used as quickly and profitably as pos-
sible.

I look forward to hearing from El'A witnesses concerning their
schedule for distributing the fiscal year 1986 and fiscal year 1987
funds. It is clear to me that EPA has been largely successful in the
past in establishing a funding program and awarding funds. I hope
that the agency will continue this past performance by distributing
the newly-appropriated funds by summer when the bulk of the
cleanup work should be done.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. LUKEN. Thank you, Mr. Whittaker. And the gentlemen from

New Jersey, Mr. Florio, who is tha author of the resolution.
Mr. FLORIO. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. Though I

have no hat to offer you, I would likewise offer to you my best
wishes and pledge my full cooperatic a this year as this subcommit-
tee goes forward to try to deal with a whole host of very important
subjects. I know that you'll provide the leadership that we need to
try to build those bipartisan coalitions that are important to effec-
tuate the goals that I think we all share.

This is a very important hearing and I commend you for conven-
ing the subcommittee and starting our work this year with this
hearing, which is an outgrowth of the consensus that evolved last
year on this very significant topic. I likewise look forward to hear-
ing from Dr. Moore, whom I have great respect for and who has
been a very good witness before this committee. I note that he was
recognized not too long ago as one of the better administrators in
the administration with an award, which I think is appropriate. In
many instances, Dr. Moore, I think, has been caught in the intra-
Administration difficulties between agencies other than his own.

8
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I've always believed that his sensitivity is good, and I'm hopeful
that we can develop a good relationship with him and his office as
we try to resolve this particular problem.

Congress has appropriated $50 million in each of the last 3 years.
The administration has never been supportive of the authorizations
but they have always seen fit to expend the money. Unfortunately
this year, they go a bit beyond their previous unhappiness with
this authorization process and attempt to take back the money in
the form of a rescission.

I'm perplexed by the rationale for that rescission in saying that
the money is not needed. That simply taxes credibility. I can repre-
sent to this body that my own state has suggested that $76 million
is required for cleanup in New Jersey alone, much less the entire
United States.

I'm going to be interested in pursuing with Dr. Moore the
progress that has been made and is being made, hopefully, in im-
plementing the regulations called for under the kgislation that
was passed last year. A relatively new process of negotiated regula-
tion is being undertaken. I will be happy and I think the commit-
tee will be i iterestedto hear what progress is being made.

As was stated by Chairman Luken, I have introduced a resolu-
tion with the bipartisan support of members of this committee, in-
cluding the support of Mr. Lent and Mr. Dingell and with the sup-
port of members of the other body, bipartisan support, to attempt
to overcome the problem that seems to be evolving from the at-
tempt to rescind the money; that is, the scheduling of the availabil-
ity of the money that I'm convinced this Congress will not allow to
be rescinded. I think as a matter of common sense, if you're going
to do work in schools, the work has to be done, for the most part,
in the summer when the children are not there.

We want to ensureand the purpose of the resolution is to
ensurethat the money that Congress has said should be available,
is made available in a timely fashion so that work can be done this
year when the money was appropriated for that work to be done.

So, Mr. Chairman, I thank you very much for the opportunity
that we're all going to be provided to get some epdated information
on the progress of cleaning up asbestos in the schools, I look for-
ward to the hearing.

Mr. LUKEN. Thank you, Mr. Florio, and thank you and your staff
for the excellent cooperation in providing us with information and
background on this hearing and the other matters that the subcom-
mittee has pursued in the past and that we will be working on.

[The text of House Joint Resolution 153 follows :]
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ILL RES. 153

IA

To provide for timely issuance of grants and loans by She Environmental Protec-

tion Agency under the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act of 1985 to

ensure that eligible local educational agencies can complete asbestos abate-

ment work in school buildings during the 1987 summer school recess.

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

FEBRUARY 19, 1987

Mr. Awn() (for himself, Mr. Thos A. LUKEN, Mr. LENT, Mr. DINOELL, Mr.

&ITER, and Mr. VENTo) introduced the following joint resolution; which

was referred to the Committee on Energy and Commerce

JOINT RESOLUTION
o provide for 1,imeiy issuance of grants and loans by the

Environmental Protection Agency under the Asbestos

School Hazard Abatement Act of 1985 to ensure that

eligible local educational agencies can complete asbestos

abatement work in school buildings during the 1987

summer school recess.

Whereas the health of 15 million of the Nation's children is

threatened because they attend school in buildings with dan-

gerous asbestos contamination;

Whereas in 1984 the Congress passed and the President signed

into law the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act

(ASHAA) to provide funds to the Nation's neediest local

0
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2

educational agencies to help them abate potentially deadly

asbestos in order to protect school children;

Whereas the Congress provided $50,000,000 in grants and
loans under such Act for fiscal year 1987;

Whereas the Environmental Protection Agency asserted in its

budget that ASHAA funds are unnecessary because prior

year funds have greatly reduced the problem and many
States have their own program, and the EPA is delaying

the fiscal year 1987 ASHAA financial assistance application

process;

Whereas there is a dire need for these funds and the Environ-

mental Protection Agony's current schedule to issue grants

and loans in June of 1987 will seriously impair the ability

of local educational agencies in need of Federal funds to

complete asbestos abatement work during the 1987 summer

school recess: Now, therefore, be it

1 Resolved by the Senate and House of Representatives

2 of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

3 That the Environmental Protection Agency and any other

4 agencies involved shall take such steps as may be necessary

5 to ensure that eligible local educational agencies are awarded

6 financial assistance under the Asbestos School Hazard

7 Abatement Act of 1984 in time to complete asbestos abate-

8 went work not later than the end of the 1987 summer scho

9 recess.

0

11/ 153 I
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Mr. LUKEN. Now I'll introduce the gentleman from Alabama who
is one of the newer members of the full committee and the subcom-
mittee, and we will not attempt to place any hat upon him, either
symbolically or figuratively or actually. The gentleman from Ala-
bama.

Mr. CALLAHAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I not only do not have
a hat to present to you, I don't even have a prepared statement for
the record.

Mr. LUKEN. Well we wouldn't want you to spontaneously give
any Alabama off -the-cuff remarks; they might last too long.

Mr. CALLAHAN. I just want to express my happiness at being a
member of your great subcommittee and look forward to working
with you and the other members of the Energy and Commerce
Committee as a whole. So that would be my statement at this
point.

Mr. LUKEN. We thank the gentleman. Now we'll proceed with
the witnesses ar_d we'll start off with Dr. John Moore.

Dr. Moore, you may take the witness chair, and if you have
anyone with you you wish to accompany you that would be perfect-
ly okay with the committee.

STATEMENT OF JOHN A. MOORE, ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR
FOR PESTICIDES AND TOXIC SUBSTANCES, ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION AGENCY

Mr. MOORE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I do have some people
with me this morning. Behind me is Susan Vogt and to her left,
Mr. Michael Stahl. Ms. Vogt is the former director of the Asbestos
Action Frogram and Mr. Stahl is currently the acting director of
that program.

I'd like to briefly summarize my statement, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. LUKEN. We don't need to worry about the bells; that's the

caucus, not the full House. Proceed, Dr. Moore.
Mr. MOORE. I think the goals of the agency and this committee

regarding asbestos in schools are essentially identical. It is to mini-
mize the inhalation of a.'aestos which is in place in school build-
ings. Our program is designed so that regulatory efforts, State as-
sistance grants and technical assistance activity complement each
other and are coordinated to reduce such asbestos exposure.

The agency has developed and continues a program which pro-
vides technical assistance to help schools identify and evaluate as-
bestos hazards and to make appropriate abatement decisions. How-
ever, we continue to believe that direct Federal funding of abate-
ment projects in schools does not represent the most effective use
of Federal resources.

State and local agencies can best set priorities and fund asbestos
abatement action. We think the Federal role in school asbestos
abatement should be to provide guidance and technical assistance
to these State and local governments. The problem is already being
addressed at the State and local level; 32 States have enacted more
than 60 asnestes-related laws, nearly half of the 32 States with as-
bestos laws have provisions addressing financing programs for
abatement. Six States have their own funding programs in place.

12
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Philosophic differences as to source of abatement funds notwith-
standing, when Congress has appropriated funds for this program,
EPA has administered it in an effective and timely manner. In
1984 Congress established the loan and grant program by enacting
the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act and appropriated $50
million. EPA developed and distributed an application, created a
method for evaluating and ranking asbestos hazard, established a
formula for awarding funds babed on the financial need criteria,
ar 1 dispatched regional office staff to inspect the proposed projects
to confirm that legitimate hazards were present.

We received 1,100 applications and awarded funds 340 schools
and 417 projects on June 6, 1985, the statutory deadline foi award-
ing funds in the first year.

For the 1986 award cycle, we substantially revised and shortened
the application form, adjusted the financial need criteria to award
more funds to more needy schools, and in 1986 loan and grant
funds totaling $50 million were appropriated by Congress and
signed by the President on November 22nd, 1985, for this round of
funds, we received 370 applications and loans or grants were
awarded to 295 schools or 421 projects on July 31st of last year.

Congress has appropriated $50 million for additional loans and
grants in 1987. The Conference Report of the HUD-Independent
Agencies Appropriations Subcommittee directed EPA to either ac-
celerate the grant solicitation process or fund high priority applica-
tions already on hand so as to fund awards by April 1st, 1987.

The President's budget submitted to Congress on January ^ of
this year contained a rescission request for $47.5 of the $50 mil' ion.
EPA staff has begun its preparations to distribute loans and grunts
in the event that Congress does not vote to rescind these funds. AC.
part of our routine program for inspecting asbestos hazards which
do not receive funds, EPA's regional office personnel have been
conducting technical assistance inspections for the remaining high
priority projects which were not funded in the 1986 award cycle.

Should Congress not vote to rescind the ASHAA funds, EPA
could then award funds for the remaining 1986 projects by April
1st of this year. These 1986 applications will probably utilize some-
where around $30 to $35 million of the possible $47.5 million avail-
able. The $8 to $12 million of remaining funds could be awarded to
new applicants in a subsequent phase of the award process which
would be completed in June of this year.

In conclusion, I believe the agency has made significant accom-
plishments indicated by the fact that we have funded projects that
would reduce student and employee exposure to asbestos fibers by
more than 8 million student and employee hours per week.

I'll be glad to answer any questions.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Moore follows:]

13
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STATCMENT OF
JOHN A. MOORE

OFFICE OF PESTICIDES AND TOXIC SUBSTANCES
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

BEFORE THE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION, TOURISM, AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE
U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVRS

FEBRUARY 19, 1967

Mr. Chairman and Menbers of the Fubc^m",ittee, I am pleased

to have this opportunity to provide testimony concerning EPA's

program to distribute loans and grants to schools under the

Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act (ASHAA) of 1984. The

goals of SPA and this Sobcommittee regarding asbestos in schools

are identical: to minimize the inhalation of asbestos which is

in place in school buildings. Our program is designed so that

regulatory efforts, state assistance grants and technical

assistance activities comolement each other and are coordinated

to reduce asbestos exoosure.

There is consensus aoout the need to properly abate serious

asbestos hazards in our nation's schools. EPA has developed and

continues a program which Provides technical assistance to

help schools identify and evaluate ashestos hazards and make

aooropriate abatement decisions. However, we continue to

believe th"t direct federal funding of abatement projects in

schools does not reoresent the most effective use of federal

resources.

In addition, state and local education agencies can best

set priorities and fund asbestos abatement actions. The federal

role in school asbestos abatement actions should he to orovide

14
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guidance and technical assistance to state and local aovernments.

The problem is already being addressed at the state/local

level. Thirty-two states have eaacted more than 60 asbestos-

related laws. Nearly half of the 32 states with asbestos laws have

provisions addressing financing programs for abatement. Six states

have their own funding programs in place. For these reasons,

EPA continues to not seek funding for this orogram in its

budget reauests to Conaress.

Nevertheless, when Congress has appropriated funds for

this program, EPA has administered this program in an effective

and timely manner. In 1984, Congress es iished the loan and

grant program by enacting ASHAA and appropriated $50 million

for loans and jrants. EPA developed and distributed an application,

created a method for evaluating and ranking asbestos hazards,

established a formula for awarding funds based on the financial

need of the school, and dispatched Regional office staff to

inspect the proposed abatement projects to confirm that a

legitimate hazard was present in the applying schools. EPA

received 1,100 applications, and awarded funds to 340 schools

for 417 abatement orojects on June 5, 1985, the statutory

deadline for awarding funds in the First year.

For the 1986 award cycle, EPA substantially revise and

shortened its application form, and adiusted its financial need

criteria to award more Funds to more needy schools. The 1986

loan and grant funds totalling 350 million were appropriated

by Congress and signed by the President on November 22, i985.

15
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-3-

EPA received 370 applications and funds were awarded to 295

schools for 421 abatement projects on July 31, 1986. EPA

Regional office personnel have also begun a program of technical

assistance visits to schools where projects are located, offering

guidance on how exposures could be reduced without federal

funding.

As you know Mr. Chairman, Congress has appropriated $50

million for additional loans and grants in 1987. when these funds

were appropriated, the Conference Report of the HUD-Independent

Agencies Appropriations Subcommittees directed EPA to "either

accelerate the grant solicitation process or fund high priority

applica.ions already on hand so as to award grants by April 1,

1957." The President's Budget submitted to Congress on January

5, 1987 contained a rescission request for $47.5 of the $50

million. Nevertheless, EPA staff has begun its preparations to

distribute loans and grants in the event that Congress does not

vote to rescind these funds. As Part of our routine program

for inspecting asbestos hazards which did not receive funds,

EPA's Regional office oersonnel have been conducting technical

assistance inspections for the remaining high priority projects

which were not runded LI the 1985 award cycle. Should Congress

not vote to rescind the ASiAA funds, EPA could then award funds

to the remaining 1986 projects by April 1, 1987. These 1986

applications will pro5ably receive $30 -3S million of available

funds. The $8-12 million of remaining funds could be awarded

to new applicants in a subseauent phase of the award process

which could be completed in June 1987.

In conclusion, I believe the Agency made significant

accomplishments indicated by the fact that EPA has funded

projects tnat will reduce student and employee exposure to

asbestos fiber by more than 8 million student and employee

hours per week. 16
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EPA Response to Pre-Hearing Questions

1. The EPA FY 1966 buLkjei. ptOpubdi cequests a rescission of 11/.5
million of the $50 million appropriated for FY1987 for the
Asbestos in Schools loan and grant program. EPA's justification
for the request is that "previous programs have already reduced
the problem." Please describe fully the basis for this
statement. Please provide the Subcommittee with all documents,
memoranda, reports or other written material, including
summaries or notes of conversations, that support or are in
derogation of, the Agency's justification for the rescission.

Answer:

Previous ASHAA appropriations distributed by EPA on June 6, 1985
and July 31, 1986 have reduced the amount of severely damaged
asbestos-containing material in financially needy school
districts. EPA has awarded a total of $90 million in 1985 and
1986 to over 350 school districts to perform 800 asbestos
abatement projects. The demand for ASHAA funds has declined
from year to year for this program. In 1985, over 1100 applications
were submitted by school districts. In 1986, only 370 applications
were submitted to EPA. Similar drops in demand should continue
as states and localities continue to perform abatement work.

In addition, information from Regional Offices indicates that
a significant number of school districts have proceeded with
abatement in the absence of federal funds.

17
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2. There is concern among school and service employee reoresentatIves
that delays in the administration of the ASHAA program will
preclude remedial actions in schools this summer. Please
provide the following information:

a) How many applications has EPA sent to local education
agencies for 1987 funds? If no applications have been
sent, please explain why.

Answer:

EPA has not sent applications to LEAs for 1987 funds. This
is because the Administration is proposing to rescind this
funding. However, if the 1987 funds are not rescinded, we
will first fund those priority projects which were reported to
us in 1996 in financially needy school districts. We will
make those awards by April 1, 1987. We expect that this would
require about S30-35 million of the S42.5 in 1987 funds available
for loans and grants. These schools should be able to complete
abatement work this summer. Of course, these schools can also
use local resources to address their concerns immediately.

The balance of the money (approximately $8-12 million) would
be made available to new applicants. Applications would be
available to schools through ASHAA state designees (usually
an official of the state health or education department) and
EPA Regional Asbestos Coordinators. We would expect to award
these funds by the end of June.

b) How many applications has EPA received from local education
agencies for the 1987 funds.

Answer:

EPA has not receivel my applications for the 1987 funds.

c) How many applications did EPA receive in 1986 for ASHAA
funds and what was the total amount of assistance requested
in those applications.

Answer:

In 1986 we received 370 applications for projects with total
costs of S212 million. Approximately 1,292 of these projects
totalling $96 million were qualified for funds because they
were in high priority categories and were located in school
districts with financial need.

d) What was the date on which FY 1986 funds were awarded under
ASHAA to local education agencies and how many of the recipients
of awards in 1986 undertoo, remedial action during the summer
school recess of 1986.

Answer:

The 1986 funds were awarded on July 31, 1996. We offered S47
million to 173 LEAs for 417 abatement projects. By the end of
the year in 1986, a total of 63 LEAs have completed their
abatement work in at least 111 project sites. Of these, 40
nad completed work at 80 project sites at the time funds were
awarded.
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3 Did EPA propose to rescind the FY 1987 appropriation in any
of its budget submissions to OMB? If the answer iE yes, what
was OMB's response in the "passback"? If the answer is no, at
what point did the rescission request become part of the EPA's
budget proposal? Please provide relevant excerpts from EPA' s
submissions to 0!8 and OMB's response to £Pk. Please ideuLify
the individual involved in the decisions to request rescission
of the F" 1987 funds.

Answer:

During discussions between EPA and OMB surrounding the OMB
passback, a decision :33 reached by the administration, with
the approval of the E,,A Administrator, to request rescission
of $47.5 million of the $50 million appropriated for the ASHAA
program. The decision was based on the Previously-stated
position that direct federal funding of asbestos abatement
projects in schools is an inappropriate use of Federal resources.

4. What is EPA's estimate of the number of schools nationwide in
need of asbestos abatement? What is EPA's estimate of the
cost of such abatement?

Answer:

In 1984, EPA estimated that as many as 30,000 schools contained
friable asbestos-contianing material.

However, we do not currently know what portion of those schools
have friable materials which need to be abated and it is not
possible to estimate the cost of necessary abatement work.
Nor do we know what the cost for the abatement will be.

Cost estimates For abatement work in the nation's schools are
being developed as part of our rulemaking required by AHERA, but
have not been completed at this time.
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Mr. LUKEN. Thank you, Dr. Moore. Let me refer to your testimo-
ny and try to expedite matters. You say that there is a consensus
that's in the present tenseabout the need to properly abate seri-
ous asbestos hazards in our school. That's present tense, isn't it?

Mr. MOORE. Yes, sir.
Mr. LUKEN. That's not past tense.
Mr. MooRE. Not as I read it.
Mr. LUKEN. The problem hasn't been solved, has it?
Mr. MOORE. As long as buildings remain in use and were built

with asbestos-containing materials, we will have to be vigilant to
make sure that that material, as it deteriorates, is properly attend-
ed to.

Mr. LUKEN. Well, there's a widespread existence of such build-
ings throughout the Nation, isn't that right?

Mr. Mooim. Yes, sir.
Mr. LUKEN. As a matter of fact, you say in one part of your teF,i-

mony that 6 States have their own funding in place. I assume that
means that the other 44 do not.

Mr. MooRE. That's correct.
Mr. LUKEN. So the States have not taken over the funding mech-

anism.
Mr. MOORE. The States have addressed some portion of the fund-

ing need.
Mr. LUKEN. Apparently, a rather minute portion of the problem.
Now, is the health risk from asbestos especially applicable to

children because of their higher breathing rate? Is that right?
Mr. MOORE. I would say that the younger the person is when

they were exposed, the more of an expected lifespan would be in
front of them to allow for the adverse consequences of asbestos to
become manifest; so therefore, the younger you are the more likely
you are to be at risk of possibly developing asbestos-related disease.

Mr. LUKEN. Going back to some of the statistics, how many of
the 31,000 schools that were estimated in 1986 to contain asbestos
have been cleaned up? Do you know?

Mr. MOORE. I don't have accurate figures on all schools that were
cleaned up, Congressman. The only figures I have that would be
exact would be the figures that related to what funds we put out.

Mr. LUKEN. I believe we submitted some prehearing questions to
you and your response generally was that EPA doesn t have specif-
ic answers to the questions as tohow many of the schools have
been cleaned up and how many remain to be cleaned up. So as far
as the problem is concerned, you don't have a definite survey as to
how much improvement there has been or how much of the prob-
lem has been resolved in any period of time.

Mr. MOORE. I don't think we or anybody else have valid statistics
that would show the specific number of those schools that may
have friable asbestos that's in a form that needs to be abated, let
alone what number of those schools have either abated or have cur-
rent plans to take some action.

Mr. LUKEN. How many of the 86 applicants were determined by
EPA to be in the high priority category?

Mr. MOORE. In addition to the ones that were funded with 1986
money, we have an estimate of some 800-odd projects, totaling some
$48 million that would fall into our Category 1 and Category 2,
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which are the two categories that we have chosen, to fund. We
expect that that number will decrease as far as eligibility for
award should funds be made available because when you apply the
financial need criteria against those applications we anticipate that
the $48 million figure, for example, will probably go down to some-
where arouna $30 or $35 million.

Mr. LUKEN. Dr. Moore, this program has been in effect for 2
yearsfunding. And in the first year, the awards were made in
June, early in June.

Mr. MOORE. June 6.
Mr. LUKEN. In 1985. In the second year, the awards were made

the end of July. Isn't that rather unusual? We would expect that in
the first year when there were still kinks in the program on the
shakedown crew, so to speak, there might be delays. But in the
second year, it was actually slower. Now, I've searched the record
and I don't find any explanation for that.

Mr. MOORE. Congressman, the Act as I remember was first
passed in August 1984. It directed the agency to make the first
year award by June 6. That was 10 months' period of time. We met
that deadline.

The second appropriation wasn't made until late November; we
made the awards in late July, a period of 8 months. So we did im-
prove 2 months in our award cycle the second year compared to
the first year. We couldn't start much earlier because the funds
were not appropriated, were not authorized and signed by the
President until late November.

Mr. LUKEN. It takes 8 months or more.
Mr. *:SORE. It takes 8 months by the time you have to work

through an application to the States, there's a state's coordinator
that basically has to receive all applications, the, applications are
forwarded to the agency, the agency reviews al', of those applica-
tions, makes on-site inspections-

Mr. LUKEN. Eight months you're proud of.
Mr. MOORE. Yes, sir.
Mr. LUKEN. Well, you haven't even asked for any 1987 applica-

tions, right?
Mr. MOORE. Correct, sir.
Mr. LUKEN. So little mental calculations would say that anybody

who applies in 1987 isn't going to get any funds at least until 1988
because we haven't even asked for the applications yet and it takes
8 months after those applications are solicited. Right?

Mr. MOORE. Mr. Chairman, we would assume that assuming that
we fund from the 1986 priority 1 and 2 categories, we have only
need for about $8 to $10 million worth of funding for that, given
the reduced number of applications that would have to be reviewed
to lead to the funding of the remaining materials we think we can
do that by the June deadline.

Mr. LUKEN. You can now do it in 6 months, or 4 months.
Mr. MOORE. We anticipate that we could do that, assuming that

we don't haveI obviously have to review every application that
comes in the mail, Assuming that we aren't flooded with tens of
thousands of applications, but the numbere of applications are
more appropriate to the amount of money that the school districts
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would know would be available, we think it's possible to do this in
the June timeframe.

Mr. LUKEN. Since the EPA has not sent applications for 1987
funds, and since the ERit. rays in their answer to our question that
this is because the administration is proposing to rescind the funds,
haven't you in effect repealed the law by your bureaucratic action
in not sending out the applications?

Mr. MOORE. Mr. Chairman, I don't sit in this job because of my
legal expertise, but to my knowledge, the administration proposing
a rescission is well within the statutes that have been laid out for
these actions.

Mr. LUKEN. But because of the rescission request you have not
sent out the 1987 applications. We're already into 1987. So it is the
bureaucracy that's operating that's going to cause a further delay
in this matter. Just before, you blamed it on the Congress for slow-
ness in appropriation. But here, the 1987 applicants, it the Con-
gress doesn't rescind, the 1987 applications are going to be delayed.
And in effect, you are repealing it by bureaucratic action.

Mr. MOORE. I would not characterize it that way, Mr. Chairman.
I think it doesn't necessarily make good management sense if on
the one hand you are proposing a rescission of all the funds for
loans and grants and at the same time appear to take action that's
absolutely contrary to what is your stated position, which has been
to request a rescission of these funds.

Mr. FLORIO. Would the gentleman yield? The only observation I'd
make is you kept the $2.5 million for administrative costs in imple-
menting the program, a key aspect of which is putting out the ap-
plications, but you didn't put out the applications.

I just wonder why you haven't distributed the application, and
what prompts you to believe that there's going to be fewer applica-
tions which will relieve your budgetary problems when, in fact, the
new law requires action by school boards. In the past 2 years you
had a great number of applications when there wasn't even a man-
datory requirement. I'm not sure I understand the inter-relation-
ship between the position you've taken and the fact of taking the
administrative money, even though you say you're not going to put
out the applications because of the rescission, and then working
from a budget-driven perspective saying there's a lesser amount of
money; therefore, you expect fewer applications; therefore, you can
be doing it faster when the facts are, I think, that you can expect
more applications because now the school boards are requ'red to go
and clean up, where in the past two years they were not.

Mr. MOORE. Congressman, the reason that we proposed to retain
the $2.5 million is not to sustain a large bureaucracy in headquar-
ters. It's to allow us to maintain what we think has been a very
effective outreach program in the States acid localities. And that
source of funds would allow that posture to be maintained. Even if
we didn't have Federal funds to abate the project, we still could
have that presence to assist them in characterizing the project and
giving appropriate insight as to what needs to be done.

My logic with respect to saying that we would anticipate a re-
duced number of applications is based on our experience which has
been that if we inform school districts a.-, to the amount of money
that is available that they, given 2 years' experience as well, I
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think can rather quickly make an estimate as to whether or not it
is worth their effort to fill out and submit a form; make some bal-
anced judgment on their part as to whether or not their chances of
success are high enough to warrant that effort.

Mr. FLORIO. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. LUKEN. I have quite a number of other questions on the dis-

tribution, but before I yield to Mr. Whittaker I'd like to get back to
the question of the rescission itself, which is very basic.

We asked you in our inquiries whether EPA proposed the rescis-
sion or whether OMB did and your answer would indicate that it
was a decision reached by the administration in which EPA con-
curred. Is that right?

Mr. MOORE. That's correct.
Mr. LUKEN. And your answer also in the face of the testimony

that you've given and your answers to questions, is that you really
don't know how much the problem has been abated; you have no
survey. You know that there is a serious problem out there affect-
ing the health of our school children, yet you agreed to a rescission
of the funding and you know there isn't enough local funding out
there at the present time.

So you've agreed simply on the groundsthe only explanation
you've given is that it's inappropriate. So is this totally a philo-
sophical defense of the decision to rescind? Is that what it's based
upon? Too much government, benign Federalism, or what?

Mr. MOORE. Mr. Chairman, I think the position as to the Federal
role in awarding loans and grants for the abatement of friable as-
bestos hasn't changed from the time that the Asbestos School
Hazard Abatement Act was passed, and that is, the administration
then and now still maintains that while certainly asbestos should
be inspected and friable material should be dealt with and we
should have a role to give assistance to make sure that it's done
correctly, the funds for conducting such things properly belong in
something other than the federal realm.

Mr. LUKEN. That's your position? And that was the Administra-
tion's position in opposition to the legislation, and made that posi-
tion known and the Congress decided differently and the President
signed the law, and now you're sabotaging the law. That is your
position and that's what you're doing; you're preventing school dis-
tricts from making applications in 1987, you're sending the signal
out to them by a combination of the rescission and bureaucratic
action that the program is about to be terminated or has been ter-
minated. And in effect, the program is being terminated by you, `)y
the administration, telling EPA that put in for a rescission and
then EPA not proceeding to go throughnot even go through the
motions of complying with the law of making the grants available.

Mr. MOORE. Mr. Chairman, I would submit that--
Mr. LUKEN. Nothing's changed. As you say, nothing's changed.

There really hasn't been any improvement, although every once in
a while you seem to indicate a change because of conditions, but
when we ask you the specific questions you don't know that there's
any significant improvement as the reason for this rescission. That
isn't the reason.
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The same reason you're offering now for the rescission is the
same reason as the administration offered in opposition to the leg-
islation initially; right?

Mr. MooRE. Philosophically opposed to the use of Federal funds
for this purpose. Yes, sir. Particularly in the realm of Federal defi-
cits that you know more about than I do.

Mr. LUKEN. We understand eLlh other. The gentleman from
KansaB.

Mr. WHrrrAKER. Thank you, Mr.. Chairman. Dr. Moore, I think
you'll agree that there obviously is a strong commitment, whether
philosophically you agree with it or not, in the Congress to provide
that Federal funding. Did the administration expect Congress to
change it2 position on the issue and affirm the rescission proposal?

Mr. MooRE. I think that's always a plausible outcome when one
looks at it. I wouldn't personally bet a whole lot of money on that
outcome.

Mr. WHITTAKER. My appreciation for your intellect has just gone
up a notch.

Then if not then, Doctor, what purpose did the rescission actual-
ly serve?

Mr. MooRE. Well, I think it's-1 would presume, I'm not party to
the thought process behind the decision but I would presume since
there were a number of things proposed in the Federal budget as
submitted by the President that there was some hope on the part
of people who put this forward and sent it up to Congress that
indeed they would look again at certain expenditures and possibly
agree with a rescission.

Mr. WHITTAKER. On page 2 of your testimony, Doctor, you state
that six States currently have funding programs in place. Could
you provide the list of those States to the subcommittee?

Mr. MOORE. Yes, sir, I'd be glad to.
Mr. WHITTAKER. And can you tell us approximately how much

money has actually been provided to schools in these six States by
the States?

Mr. MOORE. Yes, sir, I'd be glad to provide that for the record.
[The following information was submitted for the record:]
The six States with funding programs are Massachusetts, Rhode Island, Georgia,

Connecticut, California, and Illinois.
The Massachusetts program received a $30 milliun appropriation in 1986, $25 mil-

lion of which was to go to public schools and $5 million to private schools. The
Rhode Island program is based on a $19 million bond issue, funds are also available
for non-school buildings but school buildings receive highest priority. The Georgia
program has $18 million for 1987 and 1988 and funds are for public schools in a 90%
grant and 10% loan combination. California appropriated $10 million in 1984, most
of which has been awarded to public schools. Illinois has passed legislation authoriz-
ing school abatement funds and the appropriation for this program is still pending.

Mr. WHITTAKER. Is it your opinion that many States are reluc-
tant to start State funding programs because of the availability of
Federal funds?

Mr. MOORE. We have no sense that that is the case, one way or
the other.

Mr. WHITTAKER. So that didn't enter into the decision to propose
a rescission. All right.

Are there more State funding programs in the planning process
that you're aware of, and if so, when do you expect those programs
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to be in operation? And if you have that information, could you
provide that for the record?

Mr. MOORE. Yes, sir.
[The following information was submitted for the record:]
EPA has recently contracted with the National Conference of State Legislatures

(NCSL) to study asbestos legislation and programs in States, including funding pro-
grams for abatement. This study will provide detailed information about the provi-
sions of individual funding programs.

In addition to the six states mentioned above, EPA is aware of current or past
initiatives on a'uatement funding in the following States. Kentucky, Maine, Missis-
sippi, Nebraska, Ohio, Florida, Oklahoma, New York and New Jersey.

Mr. WHITTAKER. I understand that in reviewing applications, fi-
nancial need is one of the major criteria considered. What areas of
the country have low per capita income levels and low operating
budgets for school children, and do these areas coincide with the
States that have funding programs?

Mr. MOORE. We can provide that in accurate detail for the
record.

Mr. WHITTAKER. I would appreciate having that information be-
cause obviously these areas have the greatest need, if the States
are not participating. It also means those children will continue to
be exposed.

[The following information was submitted for the record:]
EPA has per capita income information from all public Local Education Agencies

(LEAs) in the nation from U.S. Census Bureau data. For each State, an average per
capita income can be calculated by using data from all LEAs in the state. The 10
States with the lowest average per capita income are: South Dakota$4,812; Arkan-
sas$4,809; Mississippi$4,746; New Mexico$5,147; Maine$5,159; South Caro li-
na$5,285; North Dakota$5,292; Georgia$5,412; Kentucky$5,535; Alabama
$5,595. Of these States, Georgia, Kentucky, Maine, Mississippi have attempted some
form of abatement funding.

For private school operating budget per pupil data, EPA has data only for private
schools which have applied for ASHAA funds. There is no national data source for
private school operating budget per pupil information. EPA's data are thus not rep-
resentative of the nation and many States have not had any private school appli-
cants for the ASHAA program. Nevertheless, by using operating budget per pupil
data reported by private school applicants, average budget per pupil figures can be
calculated for a limited number of States. The States with the lowest operating
budget figures are: Kansas$463; North Carolina$635; Massachusetts$796, Illi-
nois$853; Kentucky$970.

Mr. WHITTAKER. Did your office stop work on revising the appli-
cation form for distributing the 1987 Hazard Abstement Act funds
after the decision was made to propose a rescission?

Mr. MCORP.. Congressman, I think it would be an accurate por-
trayal to state that when we were aware that indeed this was going
to be part of the President's rescission package that the pace by
which we would seek clearance for the application form probably
dropped in deference to other priority areas. We did start to have
discussions towards review and approval of a 1987 form in Decem-
ber. That form has been approved, should Congress not agree with
the rescission, and we're ready to send those forms out when the
rescission is resolved.

Mr. WHITTAKER. According to our records, it would indicate that
the application form did not go to OMB until February 5, 1987; is
that correct?

Mr. MOORE. It was not formally submitted until then. We had in-
formal discussions with them in December; it was apparent in our
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early discussions that there were no major issues. The form that
was approved in 1987 to my knowledge is essentially identical to
the form that we used in 1986. The 1986 form was radically
changed and shortened compared to '...,he 1985 form.

Mr. WHITTAKER. Could you tell us then why it took over 2
months to revise the application form?

Mr. MOORE. Well, we didn't revise it since we didn't basically
change it, Congressman. We didn't press for clearance of the form
knowing that indeed we were not likely to send it out until the re-
scission request had been acted upon.

Mr. WHITTAKER. On page 3 of your testimony you state that all
of the appropriated FY87 money will be awarded by June of 1987.

However, according to an internal EPA memoranda, schools should
be notified no later than April "ecause of the time needed to award
contracts. In your opinion, will the granting of awards in June pro-
vide schools with sufficient time to enter into the contracts to have
the asbestos cleaned up during the summer months?

Mr. MOORE. I think if a school was notified of its award in June
it would be problematic for probably the majority of those schools
to be able to then commence activity towards cleaning uI during
the summer.

I might also point out that there's nothing to preclude a school
from moving forward with an abatement action and then seeking
reimbursement. In fact, about 20 percent of cur awards that we
made last year were in the category of reimbursement for work al-
ready done but done subsequent to the enactment of the bill.

Mr. WHITTAKER. But last year there was not any question that
the funds would be rescinded. They must believe that the granting
of funds would proceed in order for them to go ahead and put it
into their budget and anticipate reimbursement.

Mr. MOORE. I would submit that no school district had any indi-
cation other than their own supposition of being able to figure out
how they would compete prior to the actual announcement by the
agency of awards, which were all made simultaneously.

Mr. WHITTAKER. I would just like to close my questioning with a
comment. I am aware that there are only a few licensed concerns
that are able to handle the removal of this asbestos. On the June
timeframe, even if a school was notified by that time, the availabil-
ity of those trained personnel is probably limited, they also come at
a very high dollar fee for their services because of the specialized
equipment they need. Thus it will be a challenge for the schools
that need asbestos cleaned up in the summer timeframe to find
reasonably priced contractors. Obviously, 60 days more lead time
would help a great deal.

Mr. LUKEN. I thank the gentleman. The gentleman from New
Jersey.

Mr. FLORIO. Thank you very much. Dr. Moore. I welcome you to
the committee. Let me just say that I'm not going to spend a lot of
time on the obvious points that I think the committee has difficulty
with because I respect your integrity too much to put you through
this drill of being able to give us the appropriate line that I trust
in your heart you're not totally comfortable with. The idea that
somehow there is no need for this money out there is almost pre-
posterous. The philosophic debate as to what the appropriate roles
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of the respective governments are has already been resolved. The
Congress has spoken and you, as an administrator, are charged
with the responsibility of implementing that law.

Even a suggestion about somehow the schools can upfront the
money and then get reimbursed, maybe, at some point is preposter-
ous. The program, of course, is addressing the neediest schools. A
lot of those schools don't have operating revenues to use even if
they had the assurance of reimbursement. To the degree that one
school, as some particularly affluent schools have done, can go out
and float bond issuesthat's not something you do on the spur of
the moment. Generally, there are annual elections that take place.
I think that's a less than thoughtful response to one of the ques-
tions that was issued as to the reality of what we're facing.

The part that's most disconcerting to me is the fact that I think
you and the administration are aware of the fact that the money is
going to be made available. The Congress is not going to acquiesce
in the rescission. Therefore, the process is what's disconcerting be-
cause it almost connotes a means or a motivation to try to undo
the -7 in a different way; in this case, timeframes.

I 'tad brought to my attention an EPA memo from a Mr. Kling,
Consultant, Asbestos Action Program, to Ms. Vogt that says on
page 3and this is the result of experience in the past"award is-
suance by late April 1986, a month before the legislative deadline
of June 6, 1986 . . ."making reference to last year". . . was a
chief core group objective in that it would allow a school to conduct
substantial abatement activity during the summer of 1986."

So you already have within your core group a realization that if
you're going to get work done within a fiscal year you've got to
have moneys available by April. Now in light of that, to have the
decision been made in the agency not to even submit to OMB until
February something that was essentially a redoing of the applica-
tion from last year sends out a message that somebody has an
agenda out there that says notwithstanding what the Congress
does, notwithstanding the availability of the money, we're going to
play with our schedule and that will mean the money will not be
able to be used this year, maybe that will carry us over into next
year, and we can play this same game, each year getting more of a
trailer from the previous year and therefore less money ostensibly
being required. One at least car make that argument.

That's troubling because it puts into question the integrity of the
process, as to what the administrative agency is supposed to be
doing in terms of implementing as opposed to making policy. You
come right up to the edge of legitimacy in terms of the differences
between legislative responsibilities and administrative responsibil-
ities.

Dr. Moore, I want to conclude with a couple of questions on the
matter that I made reference to in my opening statement; the
progress that the agency L. :caking in the writing of the regula-
tions of the bill that was passed last year.

Can you inform us as to what the status of the regulatory negoti-
ation process is; that is, this negotiated process, which is not un-
precedented but which is relatively new? Can we expect the April
20 deadline to be met?
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Mr. MOORE. Congressman, our hope is that the April 20 deadline
for promulgation of the proposed rules will be ma. As you point
out, the negotiated rulemaking process is not a common process to
the agency. Since I've been at the agency I have been involved in
three negotiated rulemakings.

My experience on one was it was a spectacular success, the rule
got out, everybody was basically satisfied with it. In the second in-
stance, the negotiated rulemaking fell apart, some of the parties
disagreed and in fact left the process so it failed.

My sense is on this one there is a very strong commitment on
the part of the neople who are participating. They have had meet-
ings on the 5th and 6th of February, they met again on the 17th
and 18th of February, this week, two days previous. Everything
that I know of suggests that it's moving along extremely well.

Mr. FLORIO. Dr. Moore, can I ask in light of the uniqueness of
this, particularly the timeframes, is there a dual tracking system
going forward? The negotiated process hopefully will work, but if it
should fall apart and you've got this mandated deadline, there
should be a traditional EPA act going forward so that we can have
regulations regardless of whether the new approach works or not.
As you can appreciate, not only are we now concerned about the
delay in the applications and the moneys going out, but even if the
moneys were to go out, unless we have the standards for abate-
ment regulations, unless we have the contractor accreditation
standards out there, people are going to be concerned about what
to do with the money when the money is available.

So is there a dual tracking mechanism operating?
Mr. MOORE. Congressman, I think the best way to explain it is

that we are writing the rule as the negotiations are ongoing. To the
degree that there are things that are agreed upon in the negotia-
tion, they will be reflected in the rule. We have to remain cogni-
zant of the potential, although I hope it doesn't come to pass, that
indeed the thing could fail as a negotiated consensus-building rule.
If that is the case, we then have to promulgate a rule without the
consensus of the negotiating committee.

Our feeling has always been on negotiated rulemaking to the
degree you can discuss difficult issues upfront and get some agree-
ment on it and put that in the proposed rule, you really save time
from the proposed rule to the final rule because you won't have a
lot of responses coming in during the notice and comment period
that you have not addressed that are difficult for most people.
We're cautiously optimistic.

Mr. FLORIO. My next to the last question is the role of OMB. Is
OMB a participant? And since under the current Administration
they ultimately get to be the determiner of many of these things,
are they a participant in the negotiations now so as to be able to
short-circuit the length of what might be ultimate review and ap-
proval of this whole process?

Mr. MOORE. OMB is not a participant in the sense that other
people are parties to the rulemaking. We always discuss with OMB
the policy ideas that we have that we think are appropriate for ne-
gotiated rulemaking. We have done this with them in this case and
indeed they concurred that r ^gotiated rulemaking was an appro-

28



25

priate approach. We keep them briefed on the status of the negoti-
ations.

Ultimately, when we have our rule done it still will be submitted
to them for comment in accordance with Executive Order 12291.

Mr. FLORIO. Is it your sense that they are sensitive to the time
constraints that we're talking about so that when you finishas-
suming you finish, as required, by April 20, which is already too
late in some respects for things to be done this summer, OMB will
give some priority action to this?

Mr. MOORE Yes.
Mr. FLORIO. My last point deals with a specific issue that is of

some interest to me in my State. The Act, as you know, requires
EPA to set a reoccupancy standard following abatement work. If
EPA fails to set the standard, the fallback provision, the hammer
provision, requires electron microscopes to be used to allow for a
determination of reoccupancy appropriateness and prevents the use
of phase contrast microscopes.

Do you know as to whetherI don't know how far along you've
comethat this is going to be in the regulations, the use of elec-
tron microscopes? I ask you because in large measure, the consen-
sus of experts that we've talked to, commercial experts as well as
academic experts, is that it's beyond dispute that you will not be
able to achieve and measure whether you're in compliance with
regulations unless you use the electron microscope.

Mr. MOORE. We're making good progress in putting together a
protocol for the use of electron microscopy and that is one of the
issues that is part of the negotiated rulemaking.

Mr. FLORIO. Can you conceive of a situation in any State where
electron microscopes would be explicitly prohibited from being used
to determine reoccupancy, and phase contrast microscopes would
be required?

Before you respond, I saw a lot of shaking heads of no, and now I
see some conferring. I'll be happy to hear your answer.

Mr. MOORE. I thinkMike Stahl told me that, for example, in
your own State of New Jersey that they are currently using phase
contrast microscopy not because they don't think that EM is the
preferred method but they have some questions about the current
utility and accuracy of the protocols that are available for EM use.

Mr. FLORIO. I would just add that it goes beyond specifically au-
thorizing the use of phase contrast microscopy which is a technolo-
gy that most people say is out of date, but specifically prohibiting
the use of electron microscopes which is difficult to try to under-
stand.

Mr. MOORE. We're not aware of anybody prohibiting the use--
Mr. FLORIO. Oh, I can show you the memos.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. LUKEN. Getting back to the philosophical question just for a

moment, wouldn't it enter into the philosophical discussion the
question of the Federal Government responsibility for us arriving
at the fix that we're in? When I say that I refer to the fact that
when asbestos was utilized in these school buildings, whether that
was 20, 30 years ago, the Federal Government did not provide, did
it, the guidance and technical assistance which you are now offer-
ing for the cleanup?
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Mr. MOORE. Correct.
Mr. LUKEN. You have told us that the administration's positio,

is that the States and local school boards are going to have to come
up with the money; you don't recommend it but you do feel a re-
sponsibility to provide them with the technological assistance and
guidance. Now isn't it a faci, that the Federal Government was
remiss, derelict, in its duty in not providing that technology, that
guidance, 20 or 30 years ago when this asbestos was installed? We
simply didn't know any better, did we?

Mr. MOORE. I would not characterize somebody as being remiss if
they didn't know any better. You're right.

Mr. LUKEN. Well, we're talking about the same administration,
aren't we? It seems to beJ would think you could be remiss if you
didn't know any better if you have a duty to know better.

Mr. MOORE. What I'm pointing out, Congressman, I'm not sure
30 years ago somebody did know better.

Mr. LUKEN. Yes, I'm not suggesting any malice or anything of
that sort, and maybe derelict is too strong, but negligent at least,
so that there might be some responsibility. The people who should
haw known better, the national people who set the standards
there wasn't any EPA at that time, but the federal people who
would have set the standardsdidn't advise the school officials
that this was a terribly dangerous thing that they were doing in
installing asbestos in the schools. And therefore, there might be a
responsibility there on the part of the Federal Government which
did not set the appropriate standards, through ignorance perhaps,
but for whatever reason, they had the responsibility.

And since then, I might add, as the committee found last year or
the committee points out in the report last year, the EPA Inspector
General completed a detailed review of the agency's Asbestos in
Schools Program in four regions last year and these audits by the
Inspector General strongly criticized EPA's asbestos program by
documenting a pattern of lax inspection and enforcement proce-
dures and failures to distribute EPA guidance material. You're
aware of that, aren't you?

Mr. MOORE. Aware of the report, yes, sir.
Mr. LUKEN. You have no reason to contradict the report?
Mr. MOORE. To the contrary, sir, we take those reports very seri-

ously and the criticisms that were raised and the suggestions that
were made by the Inspector General wet .aken to heart by the
program and appropriate modifications have been made.

Mr. LUKEN. All right. But I think it has more than historical
value; it enters into the philosophicalthe premises for the philo-
sophical argument. I think the Federal Government has a responsi-
bility and it didn't advise in the first place and it didn't advise in
the second place, and therefore the government has a responsibility
to clean up the program which goes beyond other federal questions.
That's my observation.

The other area that I'd like to get into a little bit is the Catch-22
situation that I think the local school districts are in. We have the
testimony that we're going to receive in a little while from the Oak
Hills School District, and I just use that as an example, that's in
Hamilton County, Ohio. I presume from that testimony that Oak
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Hills is one that had made an application for 1986 and was not ap-
proved. Is that right? Would you have those records with you?

Mr. MOORE. I wouldn't have.
Mr. LUKEN. Well let's assume arguendo that that's the case.

There are many such situations, are there not? And so it's not one
that will bethe application has been made, there are many of
these where they received favorable review but for one reason or
another they have not been approved and will not be approved as
soon as you start approving the 1986 leftover applications. There
are many such school districts, right?

Mr. MOORE. Congressman, I would say that indeed if Oak Hills
was unsuccessful last year and if they- -

Mr. LUKEN. 1986.
Mr. MooRE. 1986. And if they met our Category 1 or Category 2

hazard criteria and indeed met the financial need criteria, that
indeed if the rescission is not agreed to by Congress in March, they
would run a very good chance of being funded.

Mr. LUKEN. But they run a very good chance of not being funded.
You're not going to fund all of those, are you?

Mr. MOORE. We would be, I think, in a position of being able to
fund all of the Category 1 and Category 2 projects that meet our
financial need criteria that remain unfunded from last year's appli-
cations.

Mr. LUKEN. How are they going to know whether they're in Cat-
egory 1 and Category 2?

Mr. MOORE. They can call or write to ask us.
Mr. LUKEN. If they know what question to ask.
Mr. MOORE. Ask us, what category did you put us in. We do

that- -
Mr. LUKEN. I wouldn't have known until you just stated it. How

would they know? This is gamesmanship. How do they know about
Category 1 and Category 2? Only the bureaucrats know about that.

Mr. MooRE. No, they're aware of the categories that we use and
the criteria Np,! use to establish the categories of need, Congress-
man. It's public knowledge.

Mr. LUKEN. If they're not approved, if they're not in Category I
and Category II, then they're in limbo, right?

Mr. MOORE. Pardon, Congressman?
Mr. LUKEN. For 1985 and 1986 if they're not in the approved cat-

egories, they're going to be in limbo. They're not going to know
what to do. I mean, they might qualify in 1987 if they knew how to
apply, is what I'm saying. Right?

Mr. MOORE. All school districts who were unsuccessful were in-
formed at the time that the 1986 money was put out that they
were unsuccessful.

Mr. LUKEN. But we're talking about this unusual procedure you
have that you're going to be considering the leftover 1986 appli-
cants in 1987.

Mr. MOORE. Right. Which is being in concert with the language
that was given us by the Appropriations Subcommittee, sir.

Mr. LUKEN. The Appropriations Subcommittee didn't tell you to
rescind. The Appropriations Subcommittee didn't tell you not to
take 1987 applications. That's what I'm talking about.
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Mr. MOORE. Sir, if I may, a quote from the language in the Ap-
propriations Subcommittee, "Direct EPA to either accelerate the
grant solicitation process or fund high-priority applications already
on hand so as to award grants by April 1 of 1987." We will meet
that deadline.

Mr. LUKEN. You've said that. I'm talking about the predicament
of the school district that fall into t' e cracks because you have re-
scinded or attempted to rescind, announced a rescission, and you're
not taking 1987 applications. They're not going to know what to do
if they applied in 1986they don't even know whether they're
going to be in the approved category, do they?

Mr. MOORE. Congressman, if you- -
Mr. LUKEN. You haven't published a list-
Mr. MOORE. At the time that we announced who from the leftov-

er 1986 would be awarded in 1987 if the money is not rescinded, we
then would notify all the other school districts that indeed they
could be a part.

Mr. LUKEN. So they will be starting on the process again in
April?

Mr. MOORE. Whenever we would announce. Yes, sir.
Mr. LUKEN. That's because you have made this decision not to

take 1987 applications
Mr. MOORE. That's correct.
Mr. LUKEN [continuing]. In December.
Mr. MOORE. Pending the resolution of the rescission request, we

have determined not to send out applications-
Mr. LUKEN. So that's the situation that they're in.
Mr. MOORE. Yes, sir.
Mr. LUKEN. Well, your candor deprives me of any follow up ques-

tions. But I think they are in a sorry state and that's the sorry
state of administration of the law. Actually, I think it's a culpable
failure to administer the law. I think it amounts to, as I stated
before, an undercutting of the law that could be described as sabo-
tage.

I'll ask the gentleman from Ohio, Mr. Eckart, if he wants to join
the panel. Mr. Eckart, perhaps you can ask your questions from
here. We're in the second round and I'm calling on the gentleman
from Kansas and then the gentleman from New Jersey, and then
we'll give you an opportunity, if you so choose.

Mr. WHirrAKER. Mr. Chairman, I have no follow-up questions.
Mr. LUKEN. The gentleman from Ohio, Mr. Eckart, a member of

the fl..11 committee is welcome to participate in this hearing.
Mr. ECKART. Mr. Chairman, thank you. As I'm sure the Chair-

man has pointed out already, Ohio ranks very near the top in
terms of the requests for applications. The subcommittee chairman
I think has done a good job of at least highlighting from my per-
spective the problems of the past. Can you enlighten us as to where
we're going, Mr. Moore? What can we expect to see happen this
coming calendar year?

Mr. MOORE. Congressman, very briefly, as you well know, there
is a proposed rescission request made by the President in his
budget submission. Should Congress not agree with that rescission,
our anticipation is that we will award the 1987 funds to those Cate-
gory 1 and Category 2 projects 3-1,4 were submitted in 1986, for
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which there were inadequate funds. We estimate that that would
account for some $30 to $35 million of the $47.5 million that would
become available should the rescission not be affirmed.

We then, for the remaining sum of money, would then solicit
new applications to make sure that indeed we receive and fund es-
sentially high priority Category 1 and 2 projects to financially
needy school districts.

Mr. ECKART. Do you estimate that you'll have sufficient funds to
meet all your 1987 high priority application requests?

Mr. MOORE. I can't answer that because I don't know what I will
get in 1987. We will have more than adequate funds, we anticipate,
to fund the remaining 1986 requests that are in the Category 1 and
Category 2.

Mr. ECKART. Did you spend all of the money that you had cur-
rently available to you?

Mr. MOORE. With the exception of the 1985 funds, which is the
subject of the rescission, we have allocated all of the previous
years' funds. The only minor exception to that isolated instances
where we announced to a school district that they were to receive
an award, then upon further reflection they have decided that they
did not want the money. We then would go back and fund the next
one on the list. But in essence, all funds have been expended.

Mr. ECKART. What was the total dollar amount for 1986 high pri-
orities?

Mr. MOORE. In 1986, 243 school districts with 1,292 projects for a
total cost of $96 million. We funded $47 million that were found
qualified.

Mr. ECKART. What's your estimate for high priorities for 198'7?
Mr. MOORE. Well, the only data I would have in hand, Congress-

man, would be that which was a leftover which would be 879 with
$48 million worth of requests, which when we applied the financial
need to those probably will reduce it down to probably $35 million.

Mr. FLORIO. Will the gentleman yield? You partially responded to
the question by saying $96 million which I thought was the amount
of requests that came in. How much did you expend in 1986?

Mr. MOORE. $47 million.
Mr. FLORIO. The $3 million was administrative expenses?
Mr. MOORE. Yes.
Mr. FLORIO. Thank you.
Mr. ECKART. Then how can youare you saying that what you

did in 1986 basically met all the need and that there's only this
much smaller need for 1987?

Mr. MOORE. Congressman, we have not solicited 1987 applica-
tions. What we're talking about are the applications from 1986 that
were not funded with the 1986 appropriations. So it's the leftover
that had we had the funds, we would have found eligible to receive
funds.

Mr. FLORIO. I thank the gentleman for yielding, and just a point
that we've touched on before. Just your recitation of the numbers
pits into question the validity of the whole assumption bc41,ind the
rescission. If last year you had $96 million worth of requests from
high priority, high need districts that you were only able to provide
$47 million for, how can you go and justify the rescission order of
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the additional $47 million? It's clear you have on your books today
applications that would equal that amount.

Your silence indicates to me that you're having difficulty over-
coming the logic that dictates the rescission is unjustified. I thank
the gentleman for yielding.

Mr. ECKART. I have to concur with the comments of my friend
from New Jersey. If we're dealing with requests and appropriations
requests and allocations is a better way to put itI can't come up
with a similar conclusion that supports a rescission. And can you
tell me how you all reached that point?

I understand youyou haven't even sent out applications yet for
1987, so how can you support a rescission here?

Mr. MOORE. Congressman, anytime anyone has to face up with
the reduction of a budgetEPA is no exceptionthe things identi-
fied for a rescission to meet Gremm-Rudman type requirements is
always at best a Hobson's Choice. And proposing the ASHAA funds
for rescission is at least consistent philosophically with where the
administration's position has been on this bill from the time that
the bill was passed some 2 years ago.

Mr. ECKART. Do you believe the problem is so sufficiently re-
duced that you can support a rescission in funds?

Mr. MOORE. Congressman, it was the decision of the agency as
well as the administration that considering competing priorities,
that indeed this need should be funded by something other than
Federal dollars.

Mr. ECKART., Did you appeal this decision through the adminis-
trative budget appeal process channels?

Mr. MOORE. I was not party to the negotiations that went on, but
to my knowledge, the Agency basically agreed that this was the ap-
propriate area to identify for the rescission.

Mr. ECKART. Who was party to those decisions, then, if you
weren't?

Mr. MOORE. Essentially, the Administrator and the Administra-
tor's budget staff were involved in this.

Mr. ECKART. Where did the idea for the cutback in this particu-
lar program originate?

Mr. MOORE. I have no personal knowledge of that.
Mr. ECKART. Mr. Chairman, I can only continue to be troubled by

a recommendation of rescission based on the assertion that prior
years' appropriations have near enough money problem, when in
reality we don't have the current numbers available to us to meet
the requests for this year. I have heard nothing that justifies a re-
striction on a program that clearly is so overwhelmingly necessary.

I would concur in the observations of the gentleman from Ohio,
Chairman Luken, and the gentleman from New Jersey that what
we have here is a tra-testy perpetrated on thousands and thousands
of young people all across this country. I don't think the adminis-
tration's priorities are correct, Dr. Moore, and given the perform-
ance to date, which has seen some need for remarkable improve-
ment in asbestos abatement, I think this is not the time to sound a
retreat.

I thank the Chairman for allowing me to participate.
Mr, LUKEN. I thank the gentleman, and I thank you, Dr. Moore,

for yc ur helpful testimony, your willingness to answer as candidly
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as you have, and thank y Du and your staff. We will move on to the
next panel.

The next panel consists of Ms. Roxanne Bradshaw of the Nation-
al Education Association; Mr. Monty Lobb of the Southwest Ohio,
Ohio Parent Teacher Association; Mr. Scott Strauss on behalf of
the Service Employees International Union; and Mr. Robert Smith,
Executive Director for the Council for American Private Education.

I have a unanimous consent request. There is a statement from
the Asbestos in the Schools Coalition which has been distributed to
the panel, and without objection it will be received into the records
of the subcommittee. [See p. 70.)

All right, we will proceed with this panel. All of your statements
have been received and without objection they will be received into
the records as submitted, and you may each proceed to testify. If
you want to summarize your testimony (r present it any way that
you think most helpful.

Ms. Bradshaw.

STATEMENTS OF ROXANNE BRADSHAW, SECRETARY-TREASUR-
ER, NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION; SCOTT M. STRAUSS,
ON BEHALF OF SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION;
MONTY LOBB, LEGISLATIVE AREA CHAIRMAN, SOUTHWEST
OHIO, OHIO STATE PARENT TEACHER ASSOCIATION; AND
ROBERT L. SMITH, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, COUNCIL FOR
AMERICAN PRIVATE EDUCATION, ACCOMPANIED BY PATRICK
CANAN, WASHINGTON, DC

Ms. BRADSHAW. Thank you. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, and
good morning members of the committee. I am Roxanne Bradshaw,
I'm the Secretary-Treasurer of the National Education Association.
The NEA represents 1.8 million elementary, secondary and voca-
tional education teachers and school employees as well as higher
education faculty and staff.

We are deeply concerned about the threat posed by asbestos to
the lives and health of many of our Nation's students and school
employees. This is not the first time we've been here with you. Our
President, Mary Hatwood Futrell, has given you testimony and so
has Keith Geiger, the Vice President, upon several occasions, and
we have experienced many wins under the leadership of many of
the members of this committee.

But we are still facing yet another hurdle. As many as 1.5 mil-
lion school employees and 15 million school children are exposed to
cancer-causing asbestos every day, yet the President's 1988 pro-
posed budget would rescind all funding, some $47.3 million for
grants and loans under the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement
Act, retaining only a small portion for technical assistance to local
education agencies. And in addition, the President's budget recom-
mends eliminating all of the Abatement Act funding for the year
1988.

These proposals must be rejected. At the same time, we are seri-
ously concerned about the tirning of grant applications and the dis-
tribution of funds. Regardlek of the administration's continuing
opposition to this program, the Abatement Act and the appropria-
tions bill to fund it are the law of tlA Aand. Delays brought on by
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the administration's recalcitrance only perpetuate the threat to
health and life of America's school children.

We urge this subcommittee to support the resolution sponsored
by Representatives Florio, Dingell, Lent and you, yourself, Mr.
Chairman, which would direct the Environmental Protection
Agency and other agencies to insure local education agencies are
awarded financial assistance under the Abatement Act in time to
conduct asbestos abatement work during this summer; summer of
1987.

The EPA staff responsible for the Abatement Act Prog,-ra-n have
themselves repeatedly pointed out that awards should be deter-
mined by April, we heard in the previous testimony, so that local
education agencies can carry out abatement projects during the
summer months to maximize safety and minimize academic disrup-
tion. It is imperative that these projects be undertaken while the
students are not in the schools and while the employees are not on
site.

The most recent study of asbestos in school buildings conducted
by the General Accounting Office showed that three-quarters of all
the school district:, in this Nation have at least one building that
has friable asbestos. The total costs of asbestos cleanups are esti-
mated at between $1.5 and $3 billion. In the past 2 years, education
agencies have requestedhave receivedthe EPA has received
from these agencies a total of 1,470 applications. They have re-
quested $741 million in abatement funds for 6,872 individual
schools.

However, EPA has provided only $92 million to 635 schools. The
funding has met only about 12.4 percent of the requests that have
been put forward.

NEA urges the subcommittee to support full funding of the
Abatement Act program and take immediate steps to insure that
EPA has sufficient time to carry out the application process so that
local education agencies can eliminate this threat as soon as possi-
ble.

I thank you very much for your time.
[The prepared statement of Ms. Bradshaw follows:]

36



33

TESTIMONY

OF THE

NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

I am Roxanne Bradshaw, secretary-treasurer of the 1.8 million-

member National Education Association. Our members are America's

elementary, secondary, and vocational school teachers and school

employees, postsecondary faculty and staff. I am pleased to have

this opportunity to speak to you today on a matter concerning the

most serious threat to the lives and health of many our nation's

students and school employees.

NEA has testified mr.ny times before Congress on the threat of

asbestos and the substantial need for federal assistance in

eliminating this threat in school buildings throughout the

nation. Even now, as many as 1.5 million school employees and 15

million school children are exposed to cancer-causing asbestos

every day. We are grateful for Congress' support for assistance

to local education agencies. However, we are concerned about

persistent obstacles that prevent appropriate agencies from

carrying out the will of Congress.

NEA is deeply concerned that the Administration would shut its

eyes to the present danger now existing in the many schools which

contain cancer-causing as stos. The President's FY88 proposed

budget would rescind all funding -- some $47.3 million -- for

grants and loans under the Asbestos School Hazards Abatement Act

(ASHAA) program, retaining only a small portion for technical

assistance to local education agencies. In addition, the

President's budget recommends eliminating all ASHAA funding for

FY88.
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The Administration's policy of support for a national

catastrophic health insurance plan while ignoring a national

catastrophic health threat plays politics with the lives of

schoolchildren and school employees.

Considering the grave needs in America's schools and the great

difficulties various communities face in finding resources for

asbestos abatement projects, these proposals could not come at a

worse time. In addition, compliance with the Asbestos Hazard

Emergency Response Act of 1986 (AHERA), P.L. 99-519, required of

virtually all schools, can add to the costs of abatement

projects. These additional requirements, necessary to ensuring

that asbestos inspections in the schools are conducted thoroughly

and abatement projects are conducted safely, surely justify

rejecting the FY87 recission and providing the full $125 million

authorized for ASHAA in FY88. We urge this committee's support

for these ASHAA funding levels in both FY87 and FY88.

At present, however, we are seriously concerned about the

timing of grant applications and the distribution of funds, given

the uncertainty the President's budget proposals create.

Regardless of the Administration's continuing opposition to this

program, ASHAA and the appropriations bills to fund it are the

law of the land. Delays brought on by the Administration's

recalcitrance only perpetuate the threat to health and life of

America's children. We urge this subcommittee to support the

resolution sponsored by Reps. Florio, Dingell, Lent, and your

Chairman, Mr. Luken, directing the Environmental Protection

Agency and other agencies to ensure local education agenc

3D
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awarded financial assistance under ASHAA in time to conduct

asbestos abatement work during this summer (1987).

ASHAA Award History

For the past three years, Congress has shown strong bipartisan

support for federal assistance to local schools to remove the

threat of abestos, In June 1985, the EPA offered the first $45

million in assistance to public and private schools to finance

asbestos abatement projects. In late July 1986, the EPA provided

an additional $47 million in assistance.

In the past two years, EPA has received a total of 1,470

applications from local education agencies requesting $741

million in abatement funds for 6,872 individual schools.

However, EPA has provided only $92 million to 635 schools. The

funding has met only about 12.4 percent of requests.

The states which received the highest award amounts in FY86

were Pennsylvania, $8.1 million; Ohio, $6 million; Maryland $3.9

million; and Tennessee, $3.5 million. Awards to other selected

states were New York, $2.1 million; Louisiana, $1.4 million;

Michigan, $1.3 million; New Jersey, $1.2 million; Iowa, $823,000;

Minnesota, $726,000; California, $439,000; Texas, $411,000;

Alabama, $270,000; Kansas, $250,000; and Colorado, $132,000.

Despite Congress' clear commitment to help local schools,

delays in the distribution of funds under ASHAA have caused

serious problems for a number of grant recipients. In the two

years of the program, abatement projects could not in many

cases be undertaken in a timely manner because grant and loan

recipients had not received notice of their awards until June or
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July. EPA staff responsible for the ASHAA program have

themselves repeatedly pointed out that awards should be

determined by April so that local education agencies can carry

out abatement projects during the summer months.

Quoting from an internal EPA evaluation of the ASHAA grant and

loan program completed in March, 1986:

Award issuance by late April 1986 (a month before the
legislative deadline of June 6, 1986) was a chief Core
Group objective, in that it would allow schools to conduct
substanital abatement activity during summer 1986. It
appears unlikely at this point that awards will be
announced before July 31, 1986 nearly two months after
the legislative deadline.

The EPA Regional staff concurred with this assessment. The

Region V coordinator, in an August 28, 1985 memorandum to

headquarters, stated, "The award date for local education

agencies (LEAs) receiving FY '86 Federal funds should be no later

than April 1, 1986, so that LEAs could begin abatement work in

the summer of 1986."

Despite the concerns of Congress and EPA staff persons

iesponsible for the ASHAA program, notice of FY86 ASHAA grant and

loan awards was not made until July 31, later than the previous

year.

The reasons why abatement projects should be carried out

during the summer months are clear. In many instances abatement

projects particularly when they involve removal can

temporarily exacerbate the hazards of asbestos exposure. Even

when conducted under EPA guidelines, the removal of asbestos can

temporarily release asbestos fibers into the air. Studies

conclude that even low levels of asbestos present a health
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hazard, and the smallest particles are the most silent and deadly

hazard. To maximize safety, it is imperative that projects be

uncUrtak^n while the students are not in school.

Furthermore, the threat of asbestos has been present in the

schools for far too long. It is essential that abatement

projects be carried out as quickly as possible. Yet taki, on

abatement work during the regular school year would disrupt

classes for weeks or months, a disruption that could carry over

into subsequent school years.

The 1987 Continuing Appropriations Resolution includes a

provision that directs EPA either to accelerate the grant

solicitation procesa or fund igh priority applications already

on hand in order to award all grants by April 1, 1987. A delay

by the Office of Management and Budget in approving the 1987

applications at this stage would jeopardize EPA's ability to

proceed with all due haste in processing applications and

determining awards.

1MB has apparently tried to gabatoge ASRi in the past. A

November 5, 1985, EPA report cn AS9AA stated "OMB i8 hesitant to

approve a second application solicitation...If, however, OMB does

allow a FY86 solicitation, it will probably be the last."

Needs Remain Great

The need for federal assistance to undertake asbestos

abatement continues to far outweigh available funds. The most

recent study of asbestos in school buildings conducted by the

General Accounting Office showed that three-quarters of all

3chool districts in the nation have at :oast one building with
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friable asbestos. Total costs of asbestos clean-up are estimated

at between $1.5 and $3 billion.

State and local governments have made serious efforts to

provide the necessary resources to remove or contain hazardous

asbestos. But state and local governments alone cannot fully

meet the needs in this area. Constitutional or statutory

restraints on revenue and spending have hamstrung many state and

local officials responsible for public education. Slow economic

growth, high unemployment, and setbacks in states whose economies

are grounded in agriculture, energy, and manufacturing are among

the obstacles state and local officials encounter in trying

address the threat of asbestos. The National Association of

State Budget Officers reports that 23 states have been forced to

cut their FY87 buagets, up from 1:i states in FY86.

States and localities have had to assume an ever greater

responsibility for a wide range of programs and services that the

federal government once supported, including educational

,rograms. Federal aid to state and local governments as a

percentage of the federal budget has fallen from around 16

percent in FY80 to around 10 percent in FY87.

Moreover, local school agencies applying for ASHAA grants and

loans are those with the greatest financial need. EPA reported

that 80 percent of '..he project3 funded in the ASHAA program were

in school a.stricts where tne per capita income is less than

$7,500 65 percent of the national average, and more than one-

third were in school districts where the per capita income is

lees than $6,000 or about 50 percent of the national average.
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Finally, there is an even greater need for federal funding

assistance in the wake of the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response

Act. This measure was absolutely necessary to prevent further

damage being done in an effort to address the problem of

hazardous asbestos in the schools. But carrying out responsible

abatement projects is generally more expensive than a haph"zard

approach. Local school districts that were hard-pressed to find

the funds for abatement projects of any kind will have an even

greater need for federal assistance to fund inspection and

abatement projects that adhere to these essential regulations.

Conclusion

The Administration's proposals to totally eliminate funding of

this program in FY87 and in FY88 shows a c-'1ous disregaru for

the lives of millions of school children and of school employees.

To eliminate funding for ASHAA, to bring about further delays

in the distribution of funds under the program, would be both

fiscally shortsighte and morally renrehensible. It is essential

that we continue indeed, increase our investment in human

health by fully funding the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act.

We urge this committee to support full funding of the ASRAA

program and take immediate steps to ensure that EPA has

sufficient time to carry out the application process so that

local education agencies can eliminate this threat at the soonest

possible time.

Thank you.
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Mr. LUKEN. Thank you, Ms. Bradshaw.

STATEMENT OF SCOTT H. STRAUSS

Mr. STRAUSS. Good morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the
subcommittee. I am Scott H. Strauss, an attorney, and I'm appear-
ing today on behalf of President John J. Sweeney and the 850,000
members of the Service Employees International Union.

SEILT thanks you for this opportunity to state our opposition to
the administration's decision to seek rescission of almost all of the
$50 million 1987 ASHAA appropriation, to request no ASHAA
funding for 1988, and to delay until June of this year the award of
ASHAA funds to 1987 applicants. SEIU fully supports the proposed
joint resolution calling on EPA, OMB, and any other responsible
Federal agencies to insure distribution of 1987 ASHAA funds in
time for schools 1,o use this money to finance abatement work
during this comirl summer.

The administration should be acting to protect our Nation's
school children and workers from hazardous asbestos. EPA should
be requesting full ASHAA appropriations and distributing and
processing ASHAA applications on an expedited basis. L stead, the
Reagan administration is proclaiming that neither additional funds
nor the expeditious distribution of 1987 dollars are necessary where
previous efforts have reduced the problem. EPA apparently be-
lieves that an additional year's delay in conducting needed abate-
ment work will not pose any added clanger to the health of school
children and employees. These contentions are based on fiction
rather than fact.

SEIU, this Congress, and most importantly, the administration
itself, know the ti ie facts. The fact is that asbestos in our Na-
tion's schools remain z as 't v., as :Mien EPA initiated its voluntary
program in ti1-, :-te IS70's, a grave hazard to the health of school
children and eff iu 'ees. The fact is that after nearly a decade of
EPA's voluntar, efforts over 15 million school children and mil-
lions of school workers remain in school buildings contaminated
with dangerous asbestos.

The fact is that, application for ASHAA dollars far exceed the
limited amount of Federal money available. As EPA is well, aware,
in 19' the dollar amount of applications covering Priority I abate-
me- cts was almost three times the amount of the entire
1% A appropriation.

is that EPA has told Congress that if the 1987 funding is
not r, aded, EPA will use $30 to $35 million of the $50 million
appropriation to fund 1986 Priority I applications. In other words,
the majority of the 1987 money will be used tD deal with 1983, not
1987 asbestos problems.

The fact is that in October 1986 the Congress passed and Presi-
dent Reagan signed the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act.
The AHERA obligates EPA to issue regulations requiring schools
to inspect for the presence of asbestos to determine the necessary
response actions, and to perform those actions using qualified, cer-
tified personnel. AHERA was passed because Congress determined
that EPA's voluntary program had been a complete failure.
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The fact is that EPA has recently invited interested organiza-
tions, including SEIU, to participate or a Federal advisory commit-
tee to develop proposed regulations to implement AHERA. SEIU
and many other groups are investing substantial resources and
time in order to help EPA meet its AHERA responsibilities.

SEIU is astonished to learn that at the same time as the Adviso-
ry Committee is meeting and negotiating the language of proposed
EPA regulations EPA itself is announcing to this subcommittee
that it does not see its role as one of promulgating regulations, and,
more, that the problem has been solved.

Sadly, the fact is that this national health disaster will not go
away simply by declaring that the war against asbestos is over. We
must look at the world as it is rather than as EPA, OMB and the
rest of the Reagan administration would like it to be.

As Congress found in passing AHERA, the time has come for a
comprehensive program to address the dangers posed by asbestos-
containing materials in schools. School districts urgently need
funding from any and all sources to help finance the timely com-
pletion of asbestos abatement projects.

EPA should be required to make Federal funds avaiiable as expe-
ditiously as possible, and certainly in time to undertake and com-
plete abatement work this summer when schools will not be in ses-
sion. SEIU therefore fully supports passage of the proposed joint
resolution.

Thank you again for this opportunity to appear before the sub-
committee. I'll be happy to address any questions you may have.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Strauss follows:]
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TESTIMONY OF SCOTT H. STRAUSS ON BEHALF
OF THE SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION
BEFORE THE COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE

SUBCOMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION, TOURISM
AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

UNITED STATES HOUSE OF REPRESENTATYVES

FEBRUARY 19, 1987

Mr. Chairman and members of the House Subcommittee on

Transportation, Tourism and Hazardous Materials, I am Scott H.

Strauss, an attorney with the lrw firm of Spiegel 6 McDiarmid, in

W4shington, D.C. I an appearing today on behalf of President

John J. Sweeney and the 850,000 members of the Service Employees

International Urion ("SEIU"). SEIU thanks you for this oppor-

tun 'y to state our opposition to the Administration's decisions;

(1) to seek rescission of almost all of Congress' 550 million FY

1987 appropriation ender the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act.

of 1984 ("ASHAA"); (2) to request no ASHAA funding for FY 1988;

and (3) to delay until June of this year the award of ASHAA fund.;

to 1987 applicants. SEIU fully supports the proposed Joint reso-

lution, wh.ch calls upon the United States Environmental Protec-

tion Agency ("EPA") and other responsible federal agencies, In-

cluding the Of:ice of Management and Budget ("OMB"), to ensure

distribution of 1987 AShAA funds in time for needy schools to use

this money to finance abatement work during this coming summer.

The Administration should be acting to protect our

nation's school children and workers from hazardous asbestos.

EPA should he requesting full ASHAA appropriations, and distrib-

uting and processing ASHAA applications on an expedited basis.
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Instead, the Reagan Administration is proclaiming that neither

additional funds nor the expeditious distribution of 1987 dollars

are necessary. EPA states that previous funding efforts have

reduced, if not removed, the asbestos-in-schools problem. More-

over, EPA apparently believes that an additional year's delay in

conducting needed abatement work will not pose any adjed danger

to the health of school children and employees. These conten-

tions are based on fiction rather than facts.

SEIU, this Congress and, most Importantly, the Adminis-

tration itself know the true facts. The fact is that asbestos in

our nation's schools remains, as it was when EPA initiated its

"voluntary" program in the late 1970's, a grave hazard to the

health of school children and employees. The fact is that after

nearly a decade of EPA's "voluntary" eftorts, over 15 million

school children ane thousands of school workers remain in school

buildings contaminated with dangerous asbestos.

The fact is that applications for ASHAA doll.rs far

exceed the limited amount of federal money available. As EPA is

well aware, in 1986 the dollar amount of requests for grants and

loans to cover "Priority l' abatement projects, that is projects

to address the most hazardous situations, was almost three times

the amount of the entire 1986 $50 million ASHAA appropriation.

The fact is that EPA has told Congress that if the 1987

funding Is not rescinded, EPA will use $30-35 million of the $50

million appropriation to fund 1986 Priority 1 applications.

Thus, the majority of the 1987 money will be used to deal with
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1986 asbestos problems. 1987 ASHAA applicants will have to com-

pete for a share of only $15 million, not $50 million.

The fact is that in Octo".er 1986 the Congress passed and

President Reagan signed the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response

Act of 1986 ("AHERA"). AHERA obligats EPA to issue regulations

requiring schools to inspect for the presence of asbestos-con-

taining materials, to determine the response actions needed to

eliminate asbestos-related hazards, and to perform such response

actions, using qualified, certified personnel. AHERA was passed

because Congress determined that EPA's voluntary program had been

a complete failure.

The fact is that EPA has recently invited interested

organizations, including SEIU, to participate on a Federal Ad-

visory Committee to develop proposed regulations to implement

AHERA. SEIU and many other groups are investing substantial

resources and time in order to help EPA meet its AHERA responsi-

bilities. SEIU is troubled to learn that at the same time as the

advisory committee is meeting and negotiating the language of

proposed EPA regulations, EPA itself is announcing that the pro-

blem has been solved.

Sadly, the fact is that this national health disaster

will not go away by simply declaring that the war against a.bes-

tos is over. We must look at the world as it is, rather than as

he EPA, OMB, and the rest of the Reagan Administration world

like it to be. As Congress found in passing AHERA, the time has

come for a comprehensive program to address the dangers posed by

asbestos-containing materials in schools. School d)stricts of

limited means with significant asbestos problems urgently need

funding from any and all sources to help tinance the timely com-

pletion of asbestos abatement projects. EPA should be required

to make tederal funds available as expeditiously as possible, and

certainly in time to undertake and complete abatement work this

sumaer, when schools will not be in session. The failure to

award the funds in time for the performance of summer work will

likely mean that millions of school children and school employees

will be at risk for at least an additional year. SEIU therefore

fully supports passage of the proposed joint resolution.

Thank you again for this opportunity to appear before

the Committee. I will be happy to address any questions that you

may have.
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Mr. LUKEN. Thank you, Mr. Strauss. Mr. Lobb. Monty Lobb who
is here for the National PTA, the Ohio PTA, and also represents
the Princeton School District, just incidentally.

STATEMENT OF MONTY LOBE
Mr. Loge. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman and distinguished members of the House Energy

and Commerce Committee on Transportation, Tourism and Hazard-
ous Materials, my name is Mow Lobb and I currently serve as a
member of the Ohio PTA Board of Managers. I am also serving as
Legislative Area Chairman for Southwest Ohio.

For the past 26 years I've worked for the Princeton School Dis-
trict as a teacher, principal and as administrator. But today I
speak on behalf of the National PTA, not as a school administra-
tor.

On behalf of the 5.8 million volunteer members of tho National
PTA, parents, teachers, and other interested citizens in thousands
of local units around the country and in overseas schools, I appreci-
ate this opportunity to present testimony before this subcommittee
regarding the continuing problem of asbestos in our schools.

Since its inception 90 years ago, the National PTA has worked to
secure laws for the protection of the health, education, and welfare
of the Nation's children and youth. For over 8 years the National
PTA has been active on the asbestos in schools issue working to
garnish support from local, State, and Federal officials for pro-
grams to abate all school asbestos hazards.

The legislative program of the National PTA, which is approved
by the Board of Directors each year and which provides the pri-
mary authority for all government-related activity by the National
PTA, currently includes a legislative directive on asbestos abate-
ment which expresses particular support for the Asbestos School
Hazard Abatement Act of 1984.

As you know, Mr. Chairman, asbestos was used frequently in
schools built or renovated between 1946 and 1972 because of its
strength as well as its fire-proofing, insulating, acoustical, and dec-
orative properties. However, in the early 1970's it was discovered
that when asbestos-containing materials became friable, able to be
crumbled by hand pressure, invisible asbestos fibers may become
airborne. These tiny fibers, when inhaled, may cause asbestosis, a
debilitating lung disease, mesothelioma, a rare cancer of the chest
and abdominal lining, and lung cancer.

The EPA and the scientific community agree that no safe level of
asbestos exposure has been demonstrated. Thus, any exposure
could pose risks of disease and cancer. Since the symptoms of these
diseases do not appear until 15 to 40 years after first exposure,
children, with their longer remaining iifespans, are at greater risk
of developing them.

A January 1984 survey, conducted under contract from EPA,
found that asbestos-containing friable materials /ere present in
nearly one-third of the U.S. schools, 31,000 schools nationwide, with
approximately 15 million children enrolled at those schools. The
cost of abatement for these hazards could be as high as $3 billion.
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Much of the asbestos-containing friable material in schools is
found in wrapped pipe insulation, and friable asbestos is also often
found sprayed or trowelled onto walls anu ceilings.

Since March of 1971, when EPA listed asbestos as a hazardous
air pollutant under the Clean Air Act, the Federal Government has
struggled with the asbestos problem. The Occupational Safety and
Health Administration has set and subsequently lowered the occu-
pational exposure standard for private employees, and EPA has
since extended that standard to public employees. In addition, EPA
has banned all further construction uses of asbestos.

The primary focus of Federal Government actions with rcgard to
asbestos has been asbestos in schools. However, until less than 2
years ago the actions were virtually fruitless. The voluntary Tech-
nical Assistance Program initiated by EPA in March 1979, the
minimally-complied-with Identification and Notification Rule pro-
mulgated by EPA in May of 1982, and the never-funded Asbestos
School Hazard Detection and Control Act of 1980 were all ill-fated
efforts to achieve nationwide schonl asbestos hazard abatement.

The main reason for the failure of these efforts was that they re-
sulted in neither funds to assist schools in performing abatement
work nor regulations to require that schools perform such work.

As a result of these failed attempts to address the problem, the
situation was not much better, and in some cases was even worse,
than it had been before. Many schools' inspections had been incom-
plete. Many schools that inspected for and found asbestos were un-
certain as to whether it was a hazardous condition. Schools that
knew asbestos was hazardous were not required to abate it, and
many schools attempts to abate the hazard exacerbated the prob-
lem because of the untrained abatemer4 contractors and improper
abatement work practices.

Finally, less than 2 years ago the Federal Government began
taking more meaningful actions to address the asbestos in schools
problem. In early June of 1984 $45 million in loans and grants
under the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act of 1984 was
awarded to public and private local education agencies around the
country. The remaining $5 million of the $50 million in fiscal year
1984 appropriation, and the entire $4 million fiscal year 1985 ap-
propriation was expended by EPA on technical assistance to
schools and on asbestos abatement contractor accreditation pro-
grams.

Then, on July 31, 1986, another $47 million in loans and grants
were awarded from fiscal year 1986 ASHAA funding. Congress has
also appropriated $47.5 million in fiscal year 1987 for the loans and
grants to be awarded this year, as well as $2.5 million for technical
assistance.

In additior in October 22 of last year the President signed into
law the As1 stos Hazard Emergency Response Act which requires
EPA to issue regulations setting standards for determining those
situations in which asbestos is hazardous, requiring abatement of
asbestos hazards and prescribing proper procedures for asbesto,- in-
spection, abatement and disposal.

The law also requires EPA, to develop a model contractor accredi-
tation program which states should then adopt, and requires that
LEA's develop and implement asbestos management plans which
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must include provisions for periodic reinspection of asbestos re-
maining in the buildings after an abatement.

EPA in fact is now at work preparing implementation of
AHERA, and the Negotiated Rulemaking Committee, of which the
National PTA is a member, has begun a series of meetings to de-
velop appropriate regulations for the law. Thus, the past 2 years of
ASHAA funding and the recent AHERA law and the regulatory
process have been the Federal Government's most significant ac-
tions to date in addressing asbestos hazards in schools.

Yet, progress on asbestos is now threatened. The administration
insists on destroying ASHAA loan and grant programs at a time
when more than ever before funds are needed to help schools in
meeting the requirements of the AHERA law that was signed by
the President himself less than 4 months ago.

The administration's attack on the ASHAA loan and grant pro-
gram is a two-pronged assault. First, the President's fiscal year
1988 budget proposes no new funds in fiscal year 1988, as well as
the rescissions of all of the fiscal year 1987 funds.

Second, the Administration has once again delayed sending out
the ASHAA applications to LEA's so that fiscal year 1987 awards
will probably not be in time for summer abatement projects to be
undertaken, thereby forcing major projects to be postponed for an
entire year. We understand that it can take several weeks, or even
a couple of months between the time that an ASHAA award notice
is received by a school and the time that the asbestos abatement
work can actually begin.

It appears that the U.S. Congress will have to remind the Envi-
ronmental Protection Agency and/or the Office of Budget and
Managementwhichever is responsible for these decisionsthat
every day that a child is exposed to asbestos fibers means a greater
potential for the child to develop a debilitating and deadly disease
in later years.

For this reason, Mr. Chairman and other members of the Com-
mittee, the National PTA emphatically urges you to do everything
in your power to secure adequate appropriations for ASHAA in
fiscal year 1988 to maintain the ASHAA funds appropriated for
fiscal year 1987 as well as to prevent any further delays in the
ASHAA. fiscal year 1987 application process.

We understand that you are introducing a joint resolution to ac-
complish the goal of further delays, and we heartily support that
resolution.

I comment the Chairman and members of this subcommittee for
your concern about asbestos in the schools, and I thank you again
for this opportunity to share the views of the National PTA on thismatter.

Mr. LUKEN. Thank you, Mr. Lobb. Thank you very much for a
very clear statement.

Mr. Robert Smith. Mr. Smith, we'll be glad to hear from you in
any way you want to present your contribution.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT L. SMITH
Mr. SMITH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We share the views- -
Mr. LUKEN. You represent private education.
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Mr. SMITH. That's right.
Mr. LTJKEN. Non - public schools? Is that basically what we're talk-

ing about?
Mr. SMITH. Yes. My organization is an association of 14 national

private school associations that serve or operate approximately
15,000 private schools for about 4.2 million students, which is 70
percent of the Nation's private students.

Nearly 12 percent of the Nation's school children attend the ap-
proximately 28,000 private schools which make up 24.5 percent of
all schools nationally, and employ approximately 14 percent of all
teachers.

I am here today to strongly support the joint resolution spon-
sored by Representatives Dingle, Florio, Lent and you, Mr. Chair-
man.

CAPE is strongly opposed to the President's proposal to rescind
the $47.5 million in fiscal year 1987 Asbestos School Hazard Abate-
ment ActASHAAfunds to support loans and grants for asbestos
abatement in private and public schools.

In addition, we oppose continued delays in the ASHAA applica-
tions process. As you know, the fiscal year 1987 apps opriations for
EPA funded the program at a level of $50 million and directed the
agency to announce awards in April of 1987 so that schools could
contract for abatement projects and have the work done during the
summer months when the children, faculty, and employees would
not be exposed to greater hazards. To date, however, not even the
distribution of this year's ASHAA applications has begun.

Funding for abatement projects is now more necessary than ever
before. Without adequate funding, responsible abatement projects
are impossible. Although we think the Asbestos Hazard Emergency
Response Act of 1986 requiring schools to identify and clean up as-
bestos hazards is vitally important for the setting of standards for
safety and effectivt, abatement procedures, the requirements of this
law impose enormous fiscal burdens on private schools.

The costs vary depending on what method of abatement is used.
EPA estimates that nationwide the clean-up of asbestos will cost
nearly $1 to $2 billion Sollars. Based on the findings of other sur-
veys, including one 1.-dy the Department of Education, the total
clean-up costs will be $3 billion.

Most private schools are unable to raise funds for abatement
projects for they must rely primarily on their own tuition income
and fundraising efforts and are not supported by State and local
taxes in the operation or maintenance of their facilities. Only by
careful planning, programming and budgeting are the limited re-
sources of the vast majority of private schools able to meet compet-
ing priority needs in the areas of facilities management, plant
maintenance, and operations, and health, safety and sanitation.
Therefore, asbestos alatement will unduly strain their tightly-
drawn budgets.

Although the applications filed under the ASHAA program do
not fully represent the full extent of the need, the money provided
by ASHAA is absolutely crucial to help those schools with the most
serious asbestos hazards and the greatest financial need.

We appreciate what EPA and Susan Vogt's Asbestos Action
Office have done to streamline the application forms and to insure
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compliance with the Congressional directives to insure that con-
tractors hired for ASHAA be certified by EPA. When Congress es-
tablished the ASHAA loan and grant program, loan payments
went back into the general treasury. The new law, AHERA, pro-
vides that loan payments be put into a special trust fund so that
the money can be recycled for more asbestos work.

Although we support the creation of that trust fund, we must
point ont that while pAtxpears that Congress has made a commit-
ment to fund the ASHAA program over the past 3 years at a level
of nearly $50 million, EPA allocates approximately 75 percent of
the funding in the form of interest-free lo/..s. Thus, the Federal
Government is not expending the amount tl.at is appropriated.

Mr. Chairman, we urge Congress to allocate funds for the con-
tinuation of the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Program and
for EPA to get those funds to schools in a timely fashion. Three
years of funding at half the level that is authorized have not elimi-
nated the serious asbestos nazards which continue to plague our
Nation's school children. Thousands of schools, both public and pri-
vate, continue to need Federal assistance to meet their problem.

Your leadership in support of full funding of the ASHAA pro-
gram will help all schools provide a safe environment for our Na-
tion's children and school personnel.

Thank you for this opportunity to provide our views to your com-
mittee.

Mr. LUKEN. Thank you very much, Mr. Smith, for your testimo-
ny.

Mr. Strauss, it's my understanding that you're part of the regula-
tory negotiation team currently working on AHERA. Would you
care to give me your impressions of this process today?

Mr. STRAUSS. That's correct, Mr. Chairman. I'm an alternate
member representing SEIU on that committee. As I stated in my
testimony, EPA has invited a wide range of interest of organiza-
tions to try to work together in preparing proposed regulations.

I would say that there is a concerted effort being made to try and
reach compromise on those proposed regulations. But the troubling
thing about it, Mr. Chairman, is that the agency, which is amember of the committee, is now coming forward and saying it
does not regard its role as being involved in promulgating such reg-
ulations.

In addition, we are concerned that the most the committee cando is arrive at conclusions as to what kinds of regulations should
be proposed, and EPA is committed to proposing them. But there is
no guarantee that once those regulations are proposed OMB will
not step into the process and pull the plug on the regulations that
the committee has agreed to.

Mr. LUKEN. So EPA is a member?
Mr. STRAUSS. EPA is a member of the committee.
Mr. LUKEN. That's set forth in the legislation?
Mr. STRAUSS. It's not set forth in the legislation, but the way

EPA has structured the regulatory negotiation, they are a full
member of the committee and participate in the negotiations.

The problem, again, Mr. Chairman, is that we're cone ed that
whatever comes out of these negotiations may in fact be subse-
quently undercut. EPA has stated to the committee that they do
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not hold OMB's proxy in these negotiations and that OMB involve-
ment is separate from EPA's involvement. So that EPA may be
bound to propose certain regulations but OMB isn't bound to
accept them.

Indeed, what we're doing here today, Mr. Chairman, is a situa-
tionwe're addressing a situation where EPA may have certain
views as to what should be done but OMB clearly has other views
as to what should be done. The administration, in my view, has dic-
tated a rescission of the funding, and you're absolutely correct, a
complete sabotage of this program.

We fear that it's possible the same thing can happen in these ne-
gotiations. Many can agree on proposed regulations; EPA can
agree. In fact, those regulations may even be proposed. But that
does not preclude OMB from entering the process at some later
point and sabotaging the whole thing again.

Mr. LUKEN. What is your view as to whether the EPA can actu-
ally make that April 20 deadline of the proposed regulation?

Mr. STRAUSS. Well, EPA- -
Mr. LUKEN. Do you think it will be able to come up with the reg-

ulations and that those regulations will be a product that we can
actually deal with, tha: will be feasible, tha will be helpful?

Mr. STRAUSS. Yes, I do.
Mr. LUKEN. Do the job, do you think they can do the job?
Mr. STRAUSS. Yes, I do. I'm impressed with the spirit in which

the committee is moving forward on the regulations. I think that
regulatory proposals by that date are certainly a very, very strong
possibility.

EPA has assured us several times that they are proceeding on a
dual track to try and write these regulations regardless of the out-
come of the negotiations.

Mr. LUKEN. Do you think, from your standpoint, that EPA will
be able to make the awards, the grants, by April 21 for theas-
suming that there is no rescission?

Mr. STRAUSS. Well, the problem .iith making the awardsI un-
derstand that they can awardthey intend to award most of the
money to applicants from last year. So, I don't see why they
couldn't award the money today if they wanted to.

The problem is that they haven't sent out the applications for
1987 applicants. Now that we have this new law and I hope in-
creased awareness by school districts about the problem and the
ways to go about trying to solve it, that there will be increased in
the ASHAA program. Those applications are certainly not going to
be returned and processed by EPA by April 25. They haven't even
been sent out. So, 1987 applicants will not receive any funds by
that time. I'm fairly sure of that.

Mr. LUKEN. Well, could any member of the panel respond to the
point that's been raised? It's been described as limbo. It's been de-
scribed as confusion here on the part of respective applicants, those
who have either applied and not been awarded and they don't
know whether they're application may be acted upon favorably,
those who would like to apply that are confused perhaps by the
fact that a rescission has been applied for and no applications are
being received. Does anybody want to comment on that? Mr. Lobb.
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Mr. Lolls. Mr. Chairman, from the information that I have fromJack Hunt,. who probably will testify later, in the State of Ohio
we had 30 of the hundred worse situations in schools. Out of the 30,only 12 were approved. Which means that we had 18 that were not.Now the question that

Mr. LUKEN. In 1986?
Mr. Loss. In 1986. Now, the question is whether or not there will

be a lot of other applications in 1987 that could even bethat their
situation could have deteriorated because of wetness or the friable,
the material growing older.

So our concern i5 that if they're going to go on priorities,1987 ap-
plications should also have that opportunity because we want totry to take care of the worse situations. It takes, from our under-
standing, at least a minimum of 12 weeks after you have put in
your application for you to be able then ti. start your work. So,
you're looking at a long period of time. Any delay is really creating
some problems for us.

Mr. LUKEN. Ms. Bradshaw.
Ms. BRADSHAW. Mr. Chairman, I think the greatest frustration isa sense on the part of our organization, as well as the school dis-

tricts out there, who are trying to deal with this that there may
well be an establishment of the self-fulfilling prophecies so there
won't need to be funding in the futin

If you keep people in limbo, if you keep the ambiguity continuing
as far as the regulations, if you continue on the timed lines, if the
rescission is in place as pending action, I think we are going to
have even fewer people even desiring to send in applications.
Thereby, setting up a pattern that in the future they can say, 'But,
look, we only received this few number of applications. So why
should we look for the next year of continuing the funding not only
at a past level but at any level at all." So, I think we're all dealing
with this immense sense of frustration with what's happening.

Mr. LUKEN. That will discourage applications
Ms. BRADSHAW. Absolutely.
Mr. LUKEN [continuing). From people who want to --
Ms. BRADSHAW. Absolutely.
Mr. LUKEN [continuing]. Apply and who have the need.
Ms. BRADSHAW. I wonder how much of that is a part of the

agenda.
Mr. Smrrx. Mr. Chairman, it's been mentioned but it ought to be

emphasized that a serious problem is that the delay causes the pos-sibility that the abatement processes will take place during the
school year, which is a very serious matter for the potential healthdamage- -

Mr. LUKEN. Yes. I don't think that's been emphasizci enough.It's been mentioned butyou're speaking of the immense impor-
tance of being able to do the work during the summer monthswhen the students are not exposedthe further exposure of the
constrtion or the actual physical work that will make the expo-
surew... aggravate the exposure of the students.

I thank you. The gentleman from Kansas.
M:. WilFrrAKER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Bradshaw, in

your experience approximately how tong does it take a school toenter into a contract for the asbestos abatement work once the
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funds are known to 1,-... available, and do you agree with the EPA
assessment referenced in your testimony that schools must receive
notice by at least April in order to enter into the contracts for
summer cleanup work?

Ms. BRADSHAW. I think absolutely the April date is the absolute
deadline. Knowing how school districts have to operate, where you
have to take these types of projects through your school board,
those types ofin many cases they have to let bids in order to let
the work go out. The time lines are, I think, of a longer duration
than if they receiveif they were to receive the money ready,
knowing that they had it in their hand in June, I don't think they
would be ready to start with the contractual work for that summer
session. I think it would be very difficult.

Then we know that we would be into the process of releasing as
bestos into the air, and, talking again about those rJcroscopic par-
ticles that are released during that type of operation which are
highly dangerous to the children and the employees.

So, I think we are looking at time lines that are untenable at
this time.

Mr. WHITTAKER. Thank yor. Mr. Lobb, you stated in your testi-
mony, on page 5, that it can take several weeks, or even a couple of
months, between the time an award is received and actual work
began.

Could you explain for the subcommittee what speci:ic procedures
the schools are required to use, such as competitive bidding and the
contract for the clean-up services.

Mr. Loss. OK. Representative Whittaker, my understanding is
that on this period of time that by the time you take an application
there is a 30-day deadline. Then after that there is a 6 week period
of inspections where they may even come out into the e,:hools, of
course, to se:: whether or notthey make a decision that they're
going to allow you the grant. I know in Ohio this is the way it
works.

What they do is that they'll come out to see whether or not what
you had on your application, the information, was correct.

Mr. WinTr AxEit. But I'm asking you about after the grant has
been awarded.

Mr. Loss. OK. Then after the grant you have the letting of bids
and the period of time there couldI would see on the letting of
the bids, for competitive bidding, you could end up with being an-
other 4 weeks delay before you could actually get into the schools
to start to do the work.

Mr. WHrrrAxEs. Do you have enough experience nationally to
know or can answer whether there is a shortage of contractors
available to do this work an if they are compressei, into working
during the summer months?

Mr. Loss. Again, Mr. Representative, that is my understanding.
One of the problems that we have faced, and I've been told by
people that are doing this, is that whenever you go to the summer
months also the price is usually double. Or, if you can do some-
thing during the school yearwhere in many places maybe you
can in a school. I know that we ourselves have been working on
this -;.roblem for the last 7 years and have spent our own dollars in
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our school district. But a lot of schools cannot afford to do that.
Therefore, they must have these kinds of monies available.

The other problem that we've been running into with the EPA,
for example, is that we had them go into 10 of our buildings over a
year ago and we still have not heard from them. We're assuming
everything must be all right because we haven't heard from them.
They asked us at one timewe had a transformerand getting the
transformer taken out of our high school buildingbut it sat on
our dock for three months. They were worried about the PCB's, but
they weren't concerned about picking it up.

The numbers of people that they have to come out, they usually
argue among themselves, as well as the engineers and the contrac-
tors, and no one will sign off. Therefore, the school is seen to be
liable. That is one of the problems with many of the school districts
around the country, I think, because they re afraid that they're
going to be sued by people over something where they really had
no negligence at all.

There needs to be some way of holding these peoplea hold
harmless agreement. Some of the schools, I'm sure if they had
some kind of specific guidelines, they would move on in and pay for
it themselves. But in many cases a lot of these schools just cannot
afford to do it. That's the reason they need these kinds of dollars.

We will probably have in the State of Ohio this year probably a
hundred schools that will go into the loan fund. That means that
they are bankrupt. Next year probably 200. So, for those schools it
is very important that these kinds of funds be available to them.

Mr. Winn/um. Thank you. Mr. Smith, would you care to com-
ment on the availability and the price of these contract orders
from your experience.

Mr. SMITH. I wonder if I could refer that question to Mr. Canan
who is with me here today and who has administered the asbestos
program within the Washington, D.C. area who I think can give
you a very specific response to that. Is that all right, Mr. Chair-
man?

Mr. LUKEN. No objection at all. Just please get the microphone
and identify yourself. That's the only thing we request.

Mr. CANAN. My name is Patrick Canan. I'm the former Deputy
Superintendent of the Catholic schools in the Washington area.
The question, again, Congressman, was?

Mr. WHITTAKER. Generally the availability of contractors and the
differential on their price according to their schedule during the
school year versus the summer.

Mr. CANAN. The availability of contractors and lists made avail-
able to my office came from the State of Maryland Toxic Sub-
stances Office. We received from them approximately 60 quotations
by State certified contractors a year and a half agofrom the State
of Maryland. I asked what that meant, whether it was a licensing
procedure, and so on and so forth, and I was given a generally
vague answer as to what i, meant. But since it was on state sta-
tionery 1 assumed it meant certified and licensed.

In the private sector, unlike perhaps the public sector, I dealt
with many of these contractors on a direct phone basis and identi-
fied at the sites as we determined the hazards following the identi-
fication and notification program and perhaps was able to speed up
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the process by asking them to come directly to certain sites, even
on a phone request, to provide us with an estimate and a viewing
of he actual site prior to and perhaps in the absence of the need of
preparing specification.

Even in those situations in the spring or the early summer I was
looking at 4 to 6 weeks to get even a response from these people. I
was probably dealing with four or six local contractors, again, from
the State-identified list.

As to the actual pricesof course, this is going to depend on,
one, the nature, the gravity of the hazard, its location, and the re-
quirements that would be related to isolating the building follow-
ing the usual OSHA requirements, and so on and so forth. Again, I
am referring only to doing this during the summer period when
there were no students in the school.

Let me give you a concrete example since the hazard still exists.
We have a gymnasium in the Disti_A of Columbia in a private
high school which has, in our opinion, been encapsulated following
one of the appropriate abatement procedures. This was done when
an addition to that school was made within the last 3 years. We
seriously believe and have had several contractors, including EPA
officials, look at that gym ceiling. We all agreed that perhaps the
encapsulation done on the ceiling was inadequate. Therefore, ap-
proximately 8 months ago I asked the three contractorsfour con-
tractors to take a look at it and to give us a price and a recommen-
dation as to what to do with that ceiling.

The bids rangedthree contractors looking at the same suspend-
ed ceilingthe recommendation was on all three of these to
remove the ceiling. The bids ranged for the same job from $52,000
on the high side to $26,500 on the low side for the very same job by
three or four different contractors assessing and estimating the
same job. This was in the District of Columbia.

Mr. WHITTAKER. Thank you.
Mr. LUKEN. The gentleman from Alabama.
Mr. CALLAHAN. Yes, sir. Mr. Lobb, does the State of Ohio have a

funding programasbestos abatement in the schools?
Mr. LOBB. No, sir, we do not. There was a law passed, though, for

licensing and certification which is enforced by the Ohio Depart-
ment of Health of anyone who is removing asbestos. But we do not
have any funds available. Some funds have been used from the lot-
teryexcess lottery profits but nothing has really been earmarked.

Mr. CALLAHAN. Why do you thii1k that the State has net re-
sponded to the problem, and such a severe problem which is severe
enough to come to the Federal Congress? Why do you think the
States have not responded?

Mr. LOBE. That's a good question because I work with the legisla-
tors there quite often. It seems that many of them arewe've
about three different tax cutsfour tax cuts here recentlyin
sending money back to the taxpayers. Education and other things
usually get caught in the middle between the Democrats and Re-
publicans. We just have problems, I think, of them feeling that re-
sponsibility.

I don't know if they consider it a Federal responsibility or just
local. There's a lot of thingswe have a lot of mandates from them
but no resources to take care of it.
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I don't know if I've answered your question or mt. but I can't get
into the minds of legislators.

Mr. CALLAHAN. Ms. Bradshaw, do you have any idea of how
many States have funding programs available for asbestos abate-
ment?

Ms. BRADSHAW. I understand from the report thai EPA gave you,
that there are six States that have funding programs. I don't know
if there are additional ones and I don't know how many of those
States were ones that also received then additional funds from
EPA, from the grants. We do not have that information.

In our testimony, we have identified those States who were the
top money recipients in the grants and then identified some select-ed States.

Mr. CALLAHAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. LUKEN. I thank the panel very much. I think it has been

very helpful and the exchange has been rewarding. We will moveon to the next panel.
Ms. Penny Dieck of Oak Hills; Mr. Eugene Kramer; Mr. Jack

Hunter. We will start off with Mr. Kramer. You are a Business
Manager for the Oak Hills School District.

Mr. KRAMER. If you don't mind, I'd like to defer to Ms. Dieck
who will give you sti.ne background on the funding in Ohio.

Mr. LUKEN. Ms. Dieck will give us the report from Oak Hill,
Tight?

Mr. KRAMER. The first part, yes, sir.
Mr. LUKEN. Oh, all right. The first part. Ms. Dieck.

STATEMENTS OF PENNY DIECK, VICE PR'SIDENT, BOARD OF
EDUCATION AND LEGISLATIVE LIAISON, AND EUGENE
KRAMER, BUSINESS MANAGER, OAK HILLS LOCAL SCHOOL
DISTRICT; AND JACK D. HUNTER, CONSULTANT, OHIO DEPART-
MENT OF EDUCATION

Ms. DIECK. I'm Penny Dieck. I'm the Vice President of the Oak
Hills Board of Education and also Legislative Liaison. I'm glad to
see you again, Congressman. Thank you very much for having us
here.

In order to understand the problems that we have in our district
in asbestos you need to know how schools are funded in Ohio.
There's a very complicated formula. What it amounts to is that we
receive about 40 percent of our funds from the State and the re-
mainder from local property tax.

The history of the success or lack thereof of tax levies in our dis-
trict is sad. Since 1980 levies have been proposed, with only three
being successful, two of these levies were f a one year and were for
capital improvements only and were soundly defeated by a 60 per-
cent margin. These levies would have provided funds for such
things as asbestos abatement. Our most recent levy was put on
three times before passage.

You have heard reference to the state loan fund in Ohio. Ohio
does not allow a school district to go bankrupt as such. You must
apply for loan funds. Had our last levy not passed, we would be
there now.
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The lack of support in our district is primarily due to the fact
that only 28 percent of the households in our community have chil-
dren attending the public schools. So, conversely, you have 72 per-
cent who have no direct involvement.

Ohio laws for school funding do not provide funds or revenue for
capital improvement purposes. Therefore, the source of revenue is
not available. As legislative liaison, I've recently received a copy of
Governor Celeste's new budget. We are receiving no increase in
State funding this year. Typically one might expect r 5 to 7 percent
increase per year, and that would be on a consei va,,,,ive side. We
will receive none.

With this account of our funding in our district, I think to tell
you a little bit more about it, we have about 7,200 pupils with 700
full or part-time employees. The district has eight buildings which
include one high school, two junior highs, and five elementary
schools. The buildings are all flat-roof buildings and they range in
age from 50 years to 17 years. Recent levy passage has enabled us
to replace one roof, but with over 10 acres of aging roofs, this in-
creases the problems with friable asbestos. Our school budgets are
taxed now to the limit just to take care of these problems.

Mr. Kramer has more information on our specific situation re-
garding asbestos.

STATEMENT OF EUGENE KRAMER

Mr. KRAMER. As Mrs. Dieck indicated, we do have eight buildings
in our district. Of the eight buildings, six buildings have been iden-
tified to have problems with asbestos.

Basically, we have asbestos-containing acoustical plaster in our
auditorium, shop areas in our high school, and art rooms of one el-
ementary school. In addition to this, all buildings have pipe and
boiler coverings that have been identified to contain asbestos.

The estimated cost for abatement ranges, at the high school for
removing and replacing of the ceiling, approximately $118,000; re-
moving the high school ceiling in the shop areas is $157,000. Tu
remove and replace the ceiling in the art room in the Springmeyer
Elementary School is $25,000. In addition to this, the removal and
replacement of boiler and pipe coverings in the other schools is ap-
proximately another $100,000, for a total of $399,249.

However, this is not the total cost that would be included in our
needs. In addition to this, because of EPA regulations, we must
provide an on-site industrial hygienist technician at $400 a day, a
project manager would be assigned at $500 a day, although he
would not be on the job every dayit would be approximately a
one to eight ratio.

They also tell us that we would be required to have laboratory
testing of the areas and approximately 10 samples would be taken
a day, at $30 a sample, which is another $300 a day expenses.

As explained earlier, local and state funds are not available.
Therefore, we applied under the ASHAA program. The projects are
considered in order of hazard priority. Only projects with friable
asbestos-containing materials are considered for financial assist-
ance because friable materials are more likely to become airborne
and thereby create a potential hazard to the persons in the area.
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Although our application had received favorable review, no funds
were provided. We have been informed that our application ranks
high in priority and that we should reapply. As of today, as you
well know, the applications are still not available to us.

Mr. LUKEN. Does that mean you are in the group that will be ap-
proved if the rescission doesn't occur? Do you know?

Mr. KRAMER.. We have beenabout 2 weeks ago a representative
from the EPA office in Chicago visited our school and inspected
again. He went through the buildings and told us verbally that we
should receive favorable response. What that means- -

Mr. LUKEN. Well, you've heard the testimony here today.
Mr. KRAMER. Yes.
Mr. LUKEN. You heard- -
Mr. KRAMER. We do not know
Mr.. LUKEN. You heard the EPA testify, and that there are a

group that they're going to spend $35 to $40 to fund 1986 applica-
tions that are in the priority group. They're gong to spend the $35
to $30 million, and if the rescission doesn't go through that those
awards will be made on Anril 21.

Do you have any way of knowing whether you are in that group?
Mr. KRAMER. No, we do not. Just their verbal statement that we

rankwe stand in good position. What that means, we don't know.
Mr. LUKEN. But that doesn't tell
Mr. KRAMER. It doesn't tell us.
Mr. LUKEN ]continuing]. Whether you're in that group or not.
Mr. KRAMER. No, sir. Not at all. Therein lies our problem.
Mr. LUKEN. So, if you are in that group and the rescission

doesn't occur, you will presumably receive a grant. If you are not
in that group, even though you've been told you're high in priority
and you are in need, then you will be able to dowhat? Do you
know? As far as the Federal funding.

Mr. KRAMER. No, we do not know where we stand.
Mr. LUKEN. Planned confusion?
Mr. KRAMER. Right. Time is of essence in making provisions for

abatement because, as other people have testified, the nature of the
workit should be done in the summer. After notification of a
grant we still must go through the process of specifications, writing
specifications, awarding bids, awarding contracts, and so on. We
are limited in this area because of the number of certified contrac-
tors available.

The potential health hazards to our students and employees in-
crease each day. We do have damaged friable asbestos in our build-
ings. We have attempted to encapsulate as much as possible, but
we know that this is only a temporary measure. Removal is the
only answer to the problem.

Another areaasbestos is a daily problem to us because our cus-
todians, for example, are reluctant to change light bulbs in rooms
where this asbestos material is present for fear of disturbing the
area. Many times we have to call inwhen pipecovering is dam-
aged by a student in an area we cannot touch it because of the
EPA regulations. We must call in an outside contractor. Recently
we had an area of 50 feet of pipe covering removed at a cost of over
$1,300 because we had to call inwe have recently sent two of our
employees to school to be certified to remove this, but we have not
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heard yet whether they have passed the exam and are permitted to
do this.

The problem is a persisting one for us and we appreciate the op-
portunity of presenting this to you. I think it's quite evident that
the need is there.

Thank you.
[The table with Oak Hills prepared statement follows:]
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Mr. LUKEN. Thank you, Mr. Kramer. That's very helpful. Mr.
Jack Hunter.

STATEMENT OF JACK D. HUNTER

Mr. HUNTER. Mr. Chairman, thank you for allowing me to
appear. My name is Jack Hunter and I'm a consultant with the
Ohio Department of Education under Frank P. Walter, State Su-
perintendent over construction.

My role as a consultantI am the only consultant as suchis to
provide information and technical assistance in the management,
care, maintenance, etc., for elementary and secondary school build-
ings. As such, I work with energy conservation programs and other
renovation programs. But certainly my activities have been greatly
involved with asbestos with as high as 49,000 schools.

My backgroundto give you a little bit of where I come from, I
guessI've been in the construction business and have consider-
able medical and scientific training, and they seem to fit right
along with asbestos. I began working with the asbestos program in
the schools right from the beginning, in the 1978-1979 volunteer
program.

We recognized in the State Department If Education that there
was a considerable responsibility to disseminate information, to
keep timely and to hold repetitive information seminars to try to
keep the school districts informed. This has been an item, I think,
that has been identified by USEPA, and they have mentioned it
here today, that they need to increase their technical assistance
type activity which they have not provided an adequate role in
Ohio at this time.

Mr. LUKEN. Mr. Hunter, you're going to address the question
which I believe the gentleman from Alabama raised as to what ef-
forts the State of Ohio has made to provide funding from State
funds?

Mr. HUNTER. The answer is--
Mr. LUKEN. How does the State administrationwhether this

one or previous onesyou are with the Department of Education,
State of Ohio?

Mr. HUNTER. Yes, sir.
Mr. LUKEN. How do they view this responsibility? We're talking

about a matter which you have indicated was identified at least as
early as 1978 and 1979- -

Mr. HUNTER. That's right.
Mr. LUKEN [continuing]. And we knew basically what the dimen-

sions of the problem were in the State of Ohio schools in 1978 and
1979; that there was considerable amount of asbestos in the various
school buildings which represented a peril to the childrento the
students and to those using the schools generally.

Now, you've heard the question about the Federal and State rela-
tionship here. What can you tell us as to the point of view of the
State of Ohio Department of Education on the question of the State
providing funds?

Mr. HUNTER. Mr. Chairman, I can give you two roles that the
State Department of Education has taken. One is obviously to pro-
vide me because that provides at least some State assistance and
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guidance to the school districts. We don't have a State agencyor,
we did not have for all those years a lead agency that would take
that responsibility. Co, the communication, of course, had to be be-
tween school districts and USEPA. It just didn't work so we at
least provided mewe provide many seminars and much effort to
keep information going.

We did have a task force from the State Department of Educa-
tion, an ad hoc group of various citizens, experts, and so forth, to
advise our State board of education of the problem, quantity, and
the amounts of money needed, and the State board of education did
issue a resolution supporting that and submitted that to our State
legislature.

Twice in budget proposals we have submitted requests forI
cannot give you exact figuresI didn't bring that todaybut it's
$40 million, I think, for both years that we asked for line items for
he schools in Ohio to be funded to the Department of Education

for grants and loans. Particularly grants.
through the deficit problem of financing in the State of Ohio

over these number of years there just was not money, and that
moneythe priority was dropped for other priorities. We still do
not haveat the present time have no... nad a State funding for ele-
mentary and secondary. There have been State appropriations for
colleges and for some State agencies as line items for asbestos.

Mr. LUKEN. Do any of the thrt a of you have any comments, any
opinion as to the Federal allocatingquestioning the Fed.zal/State
responsibility? Now, this is a matter which has been identified at
least about 10 years ago and, as was discussed earlier in the hear-
ing, the Federal authorities without an EPA when the installations
were made, and the EPA since has been indicted by its own inspec-
tor for a laxness in inspection.

Do you feel there is any Federal responsibility because of that
situation that goes over and above the Federal responsibility gener-
ally for its citizens and school students?

Mr. HUNTER. Mr. Chairman, I think that's an excellent question
to raise, and the parents, teachers and administrators of the
schools raise it all the time, as to why are they bad, why are they
being penalized by having to divert monies that shnuld be used for
education to remove a product that seemingly so'ne people knew
was bad many years ago.

So, it is a hard thing to defend, to raise local levies and raise
local monies to remove something that seems to be somebody else's
problem.

Mr. LUKEN. It's not the same as teaching algebra or English.
Mr. HUNTER. No. Certainly--
Mr. LUKEN. Even your constituents who have to vote on it, they

believe that the Federal Government has at least part of the re-
sponsibility and should pay at least a part of it because the Federal
standards should have prevented it. They should have known
enough about it at that time. Or, at least, if anybody should have
known about it, it would be those setting the national standard. So,
the negligence and, therefore, the responsibility may be laid at
least partially at the doorstep of the Federal Government above
and beyond the normal and usual requirements of elementary and
secondary education.
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Ms. Dieck.
Ms. DIECK. I was going to say that the only alternative, given the

EPA's view that they don't want to fund it, is to say that it's not
important enough to be funded. I don't think they're going to say
that so they have to say to take it back to the State, which I think
is a typical response. If they don't want to spend the money, I don't
think you're going to have them play the big bad wolf and sit here
and admit that asbestos is not a problem. It's just not high on their
priority list.

But given the history of asbestos and the EPA, certainly I think
we see that they are the ones who should be responsible for this.

Mr. LUKEN. Well, if we have policies that are driven by budget-
ary considerations alone, that's what hurts. Unfortunately, that's
happened too much at our ?.vel, and apparently it happens at the
State level, as Mr. Hunter as indicated and others also. But it has
been happening to a deplorable extent here in the national govern-
ment recently.

That basically covers your testimony?
Mr. HUNTER. Mr. Chairman, a comment along these line would

be that the projects that have been funded have been very success-
ful. You need to look at those, I think, for a moment.

One thing that has happened nearly in every case where they
needed the money and they used the money, most of the money
was for a rather large portion of a problem in a building. What the
school district would do then, in some way, was divert priorities
and use more money, get rid ofin other words, have a clean
building in the end. Took it among themselves;, then, to supple-
ment. But they might not have had that priority on their own.
Having the seed money, one might say, from the Federal Govern-
ment they were able then to reach a clean building status, have all
asbestos gone in the building.

I think it's a very important item to look at because they prob-
ably wouldn't have done that. If you only give them partial fund-
ing, then they will probably oily do part of the problem. There are
buildings who have had removal projects with Federal funding that
still have asbestos so they're not safe. There are many buildings
that did reach a safe status, or nearly clean status.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Hunter follows:]
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JACK D. HUKTER, CONSULTANT
OHIO DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and school asbestos

programs

A. From the very early stages of the school asbestos program two issues

became very evident.

1) There needed to be a consistent survey and inventory of asbestos

containing mater als for schools.

2) That untrained school administrators and impractical regulations were

not producing effective asbestos management in schools; thus the need

for greater technical assistance and trained consultants.

B. The 1980 P.L. 96-270 Asbestos School Hazard Detection and Control Act was

a very important step that could have resulted in very effective school

asbestos management; unfortunately regulations for this at, were

rescinded.

C. The 1983 USEPA school regulations for identification and notification

have proven to be sowewhat counterproductive and Ineffective.
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D. Ohio Elementary and Secondary School Building Asbestos Concern

Ohio has approximately 4,900 school buildings. Various survey data

indicates up to 90 percent of these school buildings have some asbestos

containing materials. About 2,800 of these schools have significant

quantities of friable or potentially friable asbestos. It has been

estimated this represents at least $400 million in priding abatement

projects in Ohio Schools.

E. The Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act (ASHAA) of 1984 grant and loan

progran(

In 11V5, the first year of this program, the ASHAA provided Ohio with

$8.25 'million for projects in 36 school buildings. This represented

nearly 20 percent of the available federal funds, making Ohio the leading

state in the natici. Yet, Ohio schools had re.uested over $109 million

for projects in 146 school buildings.

The second year of funding provided $6.01 million for projects in 35

school buildings. Again, Ohio lead in the number of applications for all

states with 250 school buildings applying for over $42 million.
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F. The ne,d for 1987 ASHAA grants and loans to schools

In 1986, over 1200 schools nationwide requested ine than $125 million

for school asbestos abatement projects, with only $47 million avail Me.

In Ohio, only 71 of 996 applications submitted in 1985 and 1986 were

funded. Many of Ohio's schools that were funded wit grants and loans

have benefited even more than could have been expected. Many school

administrators t00% action to remove all asbestos materials from their

buildings. Thus, what might have been a partial asbestos project, in

mary instances, actually become a complete asbestos abatement project.

Many local education agencies in Ohio just do not have the tax base to

produce the overwhelming amounts of money needui for full abatement of

asbestos in their schools.

G. Problems with the USEPA funding process of ASHAA grants and loans to

schools.

1) PEr capita income, from 1980 census data, was used to rank applicants

for economic need. Such data does not reflect current unemployment

and inflationary economic impact. It does not establish a local

education agency's (LEA) ability to pax for asbestos abatement.

2) USEPA ignored the criteria in P.L. 98-377 ( ASHAA), as passed by

Congress, by not considering the various economic data that the

Governor of each state established to rank the economic need of school

applicants in their state.

3) School asbestos projects with significant hazard were not given proper

consideration by USEPA. Of the 300 top hazardous projects in the

nation, Ohio had 61 of them, but only 10 such projects were fil^,'?d.

In summary, the need for continued and expanded funding from the Asbestos

School Hazard Abatement Act of 1984 is indeed a reality in Ohio and

nationwide.

Thank you.
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Mr. LUKEN. The gentleman from Alabama.
Mr. CALLAHAN. If through the very able efforts of your Congress-

man, if you were able and he were able to convince the EPA by
April 1 to provide you all of their necessary authorizations to pro-
ceed on with your programI think you mentioned four specific
problems that you hid within your district -our gymnasium, et. al.
Number one, if they would by April 1 givt you the go-ahead, how
long would it take you to correct all of the problems that have been
identified in your school system?

Mr. KRAMER. I'm hesitating. Are you referring from the time we
would award bids until the job would be completed?

Mr. CALLAHAN. I'm saying that the topic today has been that
April seems to be the deadline as to when the EPA should give in-
dication as to their authorization go-aheads.

Mr. KRAMER. I would think at least 3 months.
Mr. CALLAHAN. So, if the EPA would give you the go-ahead on all

of your programs, you could have completed the entire project in 3
months?

Mr. KRAMER. It would depend on the avi 'ability of contractors
and their schedule.

Mr. CALLAHAN. But you tiiink within 90 days you could do that?
Mr. KRAMER. We would hope.
Mr. CALLAHAN. And you would have no problem with your local

matching monies? I mean, in some cases you'd have to yourself pay
up to 25 percent, in some cases 50 percent. You would have no
problem if they salt', well, the $400,000 project is approved? You
would have no problem with your local funds?

Mr. KRAMER. I defer to the board member.
Ms. DIECK. It would be a matter of taking--
Mr. CALLAHAN. Wait a minute, do we have a bureaucracy down

there?
Ms. DIECK. It would be a matter of taldng the funds from Pet ,Ir

to pay Paul but in view of the seriousness in which v e place this
matter, we have money allocated duriag a 5-year -et plan for
some reroofing workwe would take that money pro; ably and use
it. We do view it, you know, as very serious. We've . .ver even ap-
proached close enough to have to consider this lx se we've been
delayed and delayed and we can't even get a: plication. So,
frankly as a board we've never discussed exactly here the money
would come from. But it would be there because we do put a high
priority on it.

Mr. KRAMER. I apologize for not being able to answer that. I re-
tired 3 years ago from this job and just came back the 5th of Janu-
ary. So getting back i-:'.o the swing-

Mr. CALLAHAN. There are some State funds available, though.
Mr. KRAMER. Right.
Mr. CALLAHAN. That would be local funds if you would transfer

from another project.
Mr. KRAMER. Along that timeframe, I did want to cover before

that this is the application and the backup documents that were
presented for the application. So, depending, again--

Mr. LUKEN. For the record, is that a little over an inch thick?
Maybe close to 2 inches thick?

7 0
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Mr. KRAMER. Close to it. Yes, sir. That's the material. Now, de-
pending on how their reapplication is involved, if I need to go back
and reconfirm all this, there could be a timeframe problem.

Mr. HUNTER. Mr. Chairman, a point along those lines might be
made, some information that may help. The 1985 funding cycle of
this ASHAA programthe schools in Ohio and across the Nation
basically had 18 days to s "bmit application for their State to go
through the process of revi..m, go on into the Federal review proc-
ess, the EPA.

Mr. LUKEN. Are you going to cover the question of Ohio making
a review and a ating and what the EPA did to that?

Mr. HUNTER. yes, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. LUKEN. All right. Would you include that in the comments

you're about to make?
Mr. HUNTER. Yes. The 1986 cyclethey had basically 30 days. So

the problem has been wait, wait, wait and ruin like crazy and try to
fill out this document and have a rev: Jw process which, of course,
then has many problems, as you might know. If we had 6 months
to fill this out, then we could do a better job. So there is that prob-
lem of giving the people a chance.

Many school districts, many school buildings, are not included in
the process, and I think that was made by some of the other people
testifying here todaythat. if given a chance, given enough run for
the program, they woula apply.

There are many problems in the review process. The State of
Ohio and by the Act passed by Congress is supposed to provide eco-
nomic data for each school district and rank thatrank those dis-
tricts that applyand submit that to the USEPA for ranking proc-
ess. Unfortunately, for various reasonsapparently expediency
the USEPA chose t' use per capita income only as one criteria.
The States are harmed a great deal by using that one criteria of
economic need. It is very difficult to explain to the school people,
parents of a school district that's right next door to another school
buildingthey have .... i)ad problem and they weren't funded be-
cause they're $60 per capita income higher than their neighbors
right next door who were funded, or a lesser problem. That's
almost impossible to explain.

Every State, I am sure, in this Nation has a system of allocating
money, either Federal and/or local or State money, under some
economic need priority system. Ohio certainly &e l. We have some
good economic data that we use, annual, it's current data. We were
and are still disturbed by using 1980 census data which is not read-
ily available to schools and so often they don't know what figure
the USEPA will use in the application process. And they don't
know whether they're going to 1.:-..: on the border, going to be too
high, or too lowwhatever.

I think that some of the testimony that one of the other gentle-
men gave about Ohio schools, that of the 100 highest priority haz-
ards in this Nation only a very small number, 30-some, were
funded. Of those, Ohio had a great number of that 100, and we had
7 of that 100 hazards funded. We had 61 applications in that area.
Though hazard seems not to be the lead criteria at all :n awarding
monies for the programit's per capita income. Very basic.
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The interesting point to that is that Warren City, Ohio had some
of the first top 10 applications in the Nation as far as hazard but
Warren, of course, has been hit very heavily by the steel industry
unemployment where the county unemployment rates in Warren,
Ohio are the highest in the State of Ohio and certainly lead many
areas in the Nation. So their ability to pay is almost zero. Yet,
those projects were not funded because they were only a few hun-
dred dollars above this arbitrary limit that USEPA established.

So, it does make it very, very difficult for schools to understand
where they stand and why their very high priority projects are not
funded.

Does that respond to your concern, Mr. Chairman?
Mr. LUKEN. I'm afraid it does. It's the question that we perhaps

should have probed a little deeper with Mr. Moore when he was
here, but we didn't have those details. We'll keep the record open
for 30 days for possible submission of a letter to Mr. Moore based
upon your testily :my and asking him for an explanation of those
priorities that have been established and why they haven't really
followed hazard as he indicated.

Though I think to be completely fair about it, the EPA does use
need as a basis also. I got the impression that they were using the
first criterion as hazard.

Mr. HUNTEF.. They do have a ranking process. We feel that's
probably very fair in establishing priority and hazard. The ranking
is done before the- -

Mr. Lt.).11,14. You don't have any problem with that part?
Mr. HUNTEF Not necessarily. No. I think we certainly under-

stand the burt....ucracy and the need for various categories. So, we
certainly concur with that. This ranking at State level, because the
EPA does provide in the funding processASHAA processpro-
vide Federal people or staff to process these applications and enter
them into eight entry systems which does then produce a ranking
before they leave the state.

Unfortunately, the Act calls for four or five other criteria to be
used and tc evaluate those applications for economic need. We did
in Ohio aM we have various criteria we submitted in a state plan
to USEPA for ranking those applications. We certainly would have
ranked some of our applications in a much higher economic need
than just per capita income. What we submitted as high economic
need and hi,sh hazard, of cour3e, were not funded in many cases.

Mr. LUKE/N. We're asking the EPA to utilize the wisdom which
would go well beyond that of Solomon to determine what need is as
far as the school district is cc-ncerned in the State of Ohio. I notice
from all the smiles at least f, recognition of the problem is not in
total agreement

Does the gentleman from Alabama have anything else?
Mr. CALLAHAN. No, sir.
Mr. LUKEN. Well, this will conclude the hearing. We, thank all

the witnesses. It has b' en very helpful. As far as this Member is
concerned, the evidence that we received, the comments, the infor-
mation we have, would lea 1 me to urge that we proceed with the
legislation which would have an effect, at least some moral persua-
sion on the EPA, if not legal. But proceed with all deliberate speed
in approving the 1986 and in soliciting the 1987 applications and at
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least distributing these funds which have been appropriated. I
think the need has beef demonstrated by this hearing.

So, we thank everybody for coming such a distance, and the Sub-
committee is adjourned subject to the call of the Chair.

[Whereupon, at 12:25 p.m., the hearing was adjourned.]
[The following materials were submitted for the record:]
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ASBEMS IN THE SCHOOLS
COALITION

FORINFORMATION Geri Palest, Service Employees Int'l Union, (202) 898-3360

1313 L Street, N.W.. Washinaton, DC 20005

Joel Packer, National Education Association, (202) 822-7329

January 30, 1987
1201 16th Street, N.w., Washington, DC 20036

James C. Miller, Director
Office of Management & Budget
Old Executive Office Building
17th Street and Pennsylvania Ave., N.W.
Washiriton, D.C. ?0503

Dear Director Miller:

The Asbestos in Schools Coalition, representing parents, children, teach-
ers and t...her school employees, school boards and school administrators and
other concerned organizations, strongly opposes the President's proposal to

rescind $47.5 million in FY87 Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act(ASHAA) funds
scheduled for loans and grants for asbestos abatement in the schoo's. In

particular, we oppose any delay in the ASHAA application process.

The Congress on a bipartisan basis for the last three years has demon-
strated its strong support of a Federal role in assisting local schools in
removing the health threats which asbestos presents to school children and
employees. The FY87 appropriation for EPA c.ntained the third round of funding
for ASHAA at the level of 550 million, with a directive that EPA announce
avards in April 1987.

Since we believe there is virtually no chance that Congress will accept
this rescission, we urge you to proceed with the distribution of ASHAA applica-
tions and determination of awards as currently scheduled. Even if the
rescission were adopted, the Administration would still have sufficient time to
stop funding before award determinations are made. Therefore, not starting the
application process will simply result in ar unwarranted delay in schools
receiving notice of their awards, which in turr will make it difficult for
abatement work to occur during the summer. Therefore, abatement work will be
put off another year because it cannot occur while the building is occupied
during the schnol year.

It is clear that ASHAA funds are more necessary than ever. In the first
two rounds of ASHAA awards, local school districts reouested over 5750 million
in assistance, yet :nly 59? million was availabI. The recently enacted
Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act, P.L. 99-519, signed in law by President
Reagan 011 impose additional requirements on schools for inspection and
clean-up of asbestos haza-ds. To request no new money and ask for a rescission

74



71

2

of FY87 funds represents a ctllous disregard for the safety and health of our
nation's school children.

We once again urge you to proceed wi'h the distribution and processino o'
ASHAA applications to allow for announcement of awards by April.

Sincerely,

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS
AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES
AMERICAN FEDERATION OF TEACHERS
AMERICAN PUBLIC HEALTH ASSOCIATION
CHILDREN'S DEFENSE FUND
CITIZEN ACTION
COUNCIL FOR AMERICAN PRIVATE EDUCATION
COUNCIL OF OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY, HEALTH

AND SOCIAL SECURITY, AFL-CIO
INDUSTRIAL UNION DEPARTMENT, AFL-CIO
LABORER'S INTERNATIONAL UNION OF

NORTH AMERICA, AFL-CIO
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE BOARDS OF

EDUCATION

NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION
NATIONAL PTA
NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION
NEW YORK CITY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
OMB WATCH

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION
U.S. CONFERENCE OF LOCAL HEALTH OFFICERS
U.S. PUBLIC INTEREST RESEARCH GROUP

cc: Representative James J. Florio
Representative John D. Dingell
Representative Norman F. Lent
Representative Edward P. 3oland
Representative Bill Green
Senator Ouentin N. Burdick
Senator Robert T. Stafford
Senator Max Baucus
Senator Frank R. Lauterbero
Senator William Proxmire
Senator ,Jake Garn
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

WASHINGTON, D C 20460

MEMORANDUM

SUBJECT: ASHAA Loan and Grant Program Evaluation Summary

FROM: David J. Kling, Consultant._
Asbestos Action Program ,c

TO. Susan F. Vogt, Director
Asbestos Action Program

On July 15, 1985, I presented, as a consultant to the
Asbestos Action Program (AAP/OPTS), an evaluation plan for
the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act (ASHAA) Loan and
Grant Program. The evaluation was designed and instituted
not only to provide a critical analysis of 1985 program
policies and activities, but also to develop a basic ASHAA
program plan for 1986. Over the summer and autumn, comments
on 1985 program administration and counsel on 1986 improve-
ments were solicited and received from EPA offices at Head-
quarters and the Regions. State ASHAA Designees, national
education and government associations, and local education
agency (LEA) officials.

The centerpiece of the evaluation plan was the ASHAA
Evaluation Core Group, six EPA program managers and analysts
most of whointia-d major roles in 1985 program administration.
(See attached list.) After distilling external comments and
counsel, the Core Group was charged with analyzing 1985
program policies and performance and with recommending useful
1986 modifications. This group, over the past seven months,
largely accomplished its task through advice to Michael M.
Stahl, Chief, School Assistance Staff,, and mo . formally, in
the production of 16 Position Papers on key p_ogram issues.

This memorandum summarizes the major findings of the
ASHAA Loan and Grant Program evaluation. It highlights
sources of program success, discusses major program modifi-
cations for 1986, outlines avenues of continued evalv..ion
and recommends future program directions. It also transmits
the 16 Position Papers and related appendices on key program
issues and elements. The papers, which generally represent
the consensual Core Group view, present a critical analysis
of the 1985 program and recommend a basic program plan for
1986 administration.
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Delays in FY 1986 appropriations and application form
approval, due in part to uncertainty on how Gramm-Rudman-
Hollings legislation would be implemented, have affected some
schedules in the papers. Other late ASHAA policy or program
modifications have altered some original assumptions under
which the evaluation was initiated. Nevertheless, I believe
the basic policies, principles and procedures outlined in the
papers have and will continue to serve as useful building
blocks and essential reference documents for an improved 19C6
program.

SOURCES OF 1985 SUCCESS

The 1985 ASHAA Loan and Grant Program was capably or-
ganized and administered, with awards determined and issued
on schedule despite an intimidating legislative deadline.
This was due to several factors%

Direct access to the Assistant Administrator for
Pesticides and Toxic Substances, which granted the
Asbestos Action Program (AAP/OPTS) the "administrative
muscle" necessary to meet deadlines and get results.

"Top priority" project status conferred by the Admin-
istrator.

Close coordination and expert, timely support from
other key EPA offices, such as Administration (OA),
General Counsel, Inspector General, Public Affairs,
Exposure Evaluation Division/OTS and, in particular,
Information Resources Management /OA and Economics and
Technology Divis:on/OTS.

Cooperation from leading national education groups and
from state and local government associations.

Counsel of the State ASHAA Designees, who had first-
hand knowledge of state applicants,

Comprehensive application processing support by EPA to
the states, which eased state participation and encour-
aged local education agency (LEA) application.

Willingness and ability of Regional offices to assume
key inspection and award monitoring responsibilities,
initially with minimal direction.

Cspable, dedicated AAP/OPTS management and staff, which
overcame a variety of implementation obstacles through
creativity, flexibility and perseverance.



74

Most ingredients of 1985 program success appear present
again in 1986, although ASHAA's "top priority" statuq at the
Administrator's level and the challenge of launching a new
program, which helped sustain high staff morale, may be some-
what diminished. The current three-month delay due to late
appropriations and form review may have dampened earlier Core
Group enthusiasm for an accelerated 1986 ecfort. Award

1tte April (a month before the legi411137q-
dei-d-Mm! of June 6, 1986) was a chief Core Group objective,
in that it would all schools to conduct substantial abate-
ment activity during summer 1986. It appears unlikely at this
time that awards will be announced before July 31, 1986 -
nearly two months after the legislative deadline.

KEY MODIFICATIONS FOR FY 1986

The ASHAA Loan and Grant Program evaluation proposed a
variety of modifications for 1986 program enhancement. Those
listed below have already been incorporated in the new pro-
gram plan.

Assistance Application Form revision. The 1986 ASHAA
Assistance Application Form, substantially modified by the
Core Group after a series of internal and external reviews,
is considerably shorter, simpler to complete and much more
relevant to key award criteria.

':fighter eligibility criteria. New screening criteria
will eliminate applicants with missing critical data or who
inaccurately report information. Other projects will be dis-
qualified if abatement costs are very small or if exposure
levels are negligible. In addition, financial eligibility
has been tightened to focus funds on LEAs with the greatest
need.

Mare reliable data for assessment. The revised form,
coupled with a new LEA data verification exercise, on-site
confirmation of project hazard information through inspection,
State and region comments and better EPA tracking and proces-
sing procedures, will markedly improve data base quality for
award decisions.

Clearer "project area" definition. EPA's concept of
"project area" - contiguous rooms or spaces containing a single
type of asbestos-containing material - has been more carefully
crafted, defined and illustrated for LEAs in the revised appli-
cation and other program documents.

7



75

- 4 -

Reaffirmation of project-level consideration. The
Core. Group favored project-level assessment and award over a
school-level approach because it better targeted funds on the
most critical hazard areas and it spread awards among more
applicants. Further, it may extend the financial impact of
assistance through a "seed effect," which suggests that par-
tial or project Federal funding stimulates local incentives
to finance any remaining unfunded asbestos abatement projects
in the school, thereby multiplying the actual effect of
assistance.

centralized data entry. Last year, the Agency dis-
patched a contractor analyst with a microprocessor to assist
the states in application processing and ranking. In 1986,
an administrative support person will visit the states to
aggregate applications and prepare them for delivery to EPA,
where data entry and processing will take place. EPA will
then provide states with preliminary rankings for comments
and recommendations. Centralized data entry will save the
Agency time, money and increase data accuracy.

Expanded outreach. EPA's mailing list of public
school districts and private schools has been enlarged from
33,000 to nearly 45,000.

Hazard ranking refinement. Six hazard ranking cate-
genies have been cut to four to reduce subjectivity, further
simplify classification and increase exposure hour abatement.
Only the most serious hazards will be funded.

Extended technical review. For FY 1986, an expanded,
two-tcage technical review process, extending over several
months, should reduce confusion, late hours and last minute
heroics required for prompt award determination in 1985.
Technical review tasks are being automated to the extent
possible and practical.

An enhanced Regional role. Regional officials, pri-
marily Regional Asbestos Coordinators (RACs) and technical
assistants/inspet ,rs hired under a grant with the American
Association of Ret-red Persons (HARP), are assuming more
responsibility in the 1986 program, particularly in liaison
with states and schools. They will continue to conduct
pre-award inspections, evaluate o -wing and completed award
projects, and counsel LEAs with unfunded priority #1 projects
on their abatement options.

Improved inspection training and :argeting. Compre-
hensive building inspection training for AARP personnel,
conducted in December 1985, will improve the quality and
efficiency of 1986 school inspections. The Agency has re-
vised its mechanism for assigning these pre-award verifi-
cation inspections tc better identify priority projects.
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Closer working relations with major education and
government associations. kAp/opTs has worked closely with
major national education groups, such as the National PTA and
the Council on American Private Education, and with leading
state and local government associations, such as the National
Governors' Association, to improve program operation and
widen public information. Periodic briefings are being held
for these groups at critical points in the award cycle.

Improved integration with related Agency programs.
ASHAA activities are being consolidated and coordinated with
other EPA asbestos programs for better use of resources,
particularly in the Regions. Most integration has occurred
with the Office of Compliance Monitoring, which must enforce
the Asbestos in Schools Identification and Notification Rule
(ASINR). AARP personnel, for example, are now trained to
conduct both compliance (ASINR) and building (ASHAA) Inspec-
tions.

LEA data verification. In 1986, LEAs will be asked to
confirm the key application data they report to EPA on their
applications. This is to assure that EPA has properly re-
corded originally reported information.

ahanced State comment. A revised state review and
certification procedure will allow state designees more time
and better information to assess applications, provide com-
ments and influence project rankings within their states.

Contractor certification end training requirement. In
accordance with the FY 1986 ASHAA appropriation legislation,
new award conditions will require that contractors or in-house
staff conducting ASHAA-funded abatempnt work be either cer-
tified by the state or have successfully comrleted an EPA-
approved training course. EPA is providing grants to help
States establish contractor licensing or training programs.
In addition, EPA has provided funds for five asbestos infor-
mation centers and will provide funds for four or five satel-
lite training centers across the nation. Finally, the Agency
has begun efforts to review and approve new and existing
training programs offered by public and private groups.

CONTINUED EVALUATION ACTIVITIES

Several evaluation efforts are still underway to assess
the impact of the ASHAA Loan and Grant Program and related
ASHAA activities.
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Impact Evaluation. The Agency ha: engaged a noted
education finance consultant to examine two major aspects of
the Loan and Grant Program: (1) the so-called "seed effect"
of partial funding, and (2) the progress of ASHAA-funded
abatement compared to abatement of projects not funded by
ASHAA. The first study will try to determine if partial
Federal funding does provide a stimulus for local fund match-
ing and expanded abatement activity. The second study will
compare the speed and effectiveness of ASHAA abatement pro-
jects to local or state financed abatement activities.

Abatement Cost Model. EPA, under a contract with
Versar Associates, is developing a model to estimate abate-
ment costs based upon various damage, location and abate-
ment method characteristics. It will be used by EPA in the
1986 Loan and Grant Program to assess the reasonableness of
cost estimates and may later be used to help LEAs and states
assess the reasonableness of project costs provided by
contractors.

Technical Assistance for Unfunded Priority Projects.
The Agency is providing technical assistance, particularly
abatement counseling, to those LEAs with qualified but un-
funded ASHAA asbestos projects. These projects represent
known but unabated hazards. EPA has set hazard reduction
goals and is tracking progress on these projects as part of
its Strategic Planning and Management System.

Training Course Effectiveness. EPA is developing basic
criteria which may be used, as noted above, to review and
approve new and existing training courses offered by public
and private groups. The Agency continually evaluates the
quality and effectiveness of training courses at the asbestos
information and training centers and will monitor courses at
the new satellite centers.

Technical Assistance Performance Improvement Project.
In a related effort, EPA has begun a performance improvement
project (PIP) to assess the Agency's success in promoting
effective asbestos abatement in ASHAA-funded schools.
Specifically, the technical assistance PIP will try to
determine if trained asbestos abatement contractors conducted
their ASHAA work significantly more safely and effectively
than untrained contractors.

RECCMMENDATIONS

A few recommendations, arising from the evaluation or
other recent developments, are listed below for consideration
as you chart future program directions.
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Affirm:tion of Priority Status of ASHAA Loan and Grant
Program by the Administrator. In light of the appropriation
and application delays, it might be advisable to affirm the
priority of awarding 1986 ASHAA funds expeditiously. This
could be done through an Administrator memorandum, cimilar to
the one signed on January 23, 1985, to EPA executive personnel
restating the "top priority" status of ASHAA. A new memoran-
dum would assure continued Agency support and sustain AAP/
OPTS staff morale through the current cycle.

Technical Assistance Program Enhancement. As it appears
uncertirR that ASHAA Loan and Grant Program funds will be
available in subsequent years, EPA may be wise to enhance its
current technical assistance effort, particularly activities
which promote training program review, State program develop-
ment, and local consultation to schools and other building
owners. Such programs, administered largely in the Regions,
help States and localities help themselves toward program
self-sufficiency.

Increased Asbestos Research. In addition to technical
assistance, extra Agency emphasis might be placed on asbestos
research While there is general agreement on,basic iscies
(i.e., friability and damage increase fiber release into the
air), questions do remain on more precise co.merns, such as
the interplay of key hazard factors and the effects of other
characteristics, such as indirect exposure.

Coordination of EPA Asbestos Programs. EPA sponsors a
variety of asbestos programs within OPTS and the Offices of
Drinking Water, Air Quality Planning and Standards, and
Research and Development. Closer coordination, perhaps even
some integration end consolidation, of ASHAA and other Agency
asbestos activities appears beneficial. While some program
integration does seem to occur in the Regions, closer coor-
dination of ASHAA, ASINR compliance, NESHAPS and various as-
bestos research initiatives may be possible at headquarters.

Sufficient Regional Resources. No program or organiza-
tional modification should be considered without assessing
its implications for Regional management. The Regions have
many administrative and monitoring responsibilities for ASHAA
and other asbestos programs, and headquarters must insure
that the Regions possess sufficient information and resources
for program success. This is particularly true if the
technical assistance program is enhanced.

AAP/oPTS Reorganization. Finally, AAP/OPTS organization
and management within the immediate office of the Assistant
Administrator for Pesticides ano Toxic Substances offered
several important advantages for ASHAA program development
and implementation. In subsequent years, however, as ASHAA
becomes more routine or loses loan and grant funding alto-
gether, a more conventional organizational placement of
AAP/OPTS or ASHAA activities might be advisable. In other
words, ASHAA activities may no longer require the Assistant
Administrator's.constant attention as they become regular and
much less volatile. A shift of ASHAA responsibilities or a
consolidation of all asbestos programs in OTS might be studied.
In any event., it may now be time to consider reorganization
options for AAF/OPTS.
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